AGENDA
COUNCIL MEETING
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK
April 10, 2018
1:00 pm

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

DELEGATIONS

1.

2.

Consolidated Financial Statements

- Financial Statements for year ended December 31, 2017
Pincher Creek Airport Presentation

- Presentation from Fire Chief Dave Cox

MINUTES

Special Council Meeting Minutes

- March 26, 2018
Council Committee Meeting Minutes

- March 27, 2018
Council Meeting Minutes

- March 27, 2018

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1.

Planning Bylaws

Bylaw No. 1285-18 presented for third reading
Bylaw No. 1286-18 presented for third reading
Bylaw No. 1287-18 presented for third reading

CHIEF ADMINISTRATOR OFFICER’S (CAO) REPORTS

1.

Operations

a) Airport Lease Agreement

Report from Director of Operations, dated April 3, 2018

b) Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Project Briefing

Briefing Report, dated April 5, 2018

c) Operations Report

Report from Director of Operations, dated April 5, 2018
Public Works Call Log
Water Project Updates

Planning and Development

Nil

Finance

a) 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements

Report from Director of Finance, dated March 28, 2018

b) Bylaw No. 1284-18 — Mill Rate Bylaw

Report from Director of Finance, dated April 5, 2018

c) Statement of Cash Position

Statement for month ending March 2018

Municipal

a) Regional Meeting — April 19, 2018

Email from Town of Pincher Creek, dated March 27, 2018

b) Governance Model Alternatives — Mr. George Cuff

Report from Interim Chief Administrative Officer, dated April 4, 2018

c) Interim Chief Administrative Officer Report

Report from Interim Chief Administrative Officer, dated April 5, 2018
Enhanced Policing Monthly Report, March 2018
Administration Call Log



F.

CORRESPONDENCE

1. For Action
Nil
2. For Information

a) Provincial Education Requisition Credit
- Letter from Municipal Affairs, dated March 15, 2018

b) Alberta Community Partnership — Intermunicipal Collaboration Framework

- Letter from Municipal Affairs, dated March 19, 2018 — Town of Pincher Creek

- Letter from Municipal Affairs, dated March 19, 2018
¢) Municipal Accountability Program
- Letter from Municipal Affairs, dated March 27, 2018
- Letter from Municipal Affairs, dated March 29, 2018
d) Municipal Sustainability Imitative
- Letter from Municipal Affairs, dated March 29, 2018
e) April 28 — National Day of Mourning
- Letter from Workers” Compensation Board, dated March 21, 2018
f) Chapel Rock to Pincher Creek Transmission Development
- Letter from Livingstone Landowners’ Group, dated March 24, 2018
- Letter from Alberta Electric System Operator, dated March 27, 2018
g) Prevention of Quagga and Zebra Mussels
- Letter from Alberta Beach, dated March 21, 2018

COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS

Reeve Quentin Stevick — Division 1
Agricultural Service Board
- Minutes of March 1, 2018
Alberta SouthWest
- Minutes of March 7, 2018
- Bulletin March 2018
- Bulletin April 2018

Councillor Rick Lemire — Division 2

Councillor Bev Everts— Division 3
Asset Management Plan
- Excerpts from the Asset Management Plan for the MD
Town of Pincher Creek Community Information Evening
- Information Handout
Castle Mountain Community Association
- Email from CMCA, dated April 5, 2018
Beaver Mines Community Association
- Minutes of February 27, 2018

Councillor Brian Hammond - Division 4
Pincher Creek Foundation
- Financial Statement for year ending December 31, 2017

Councillor Terry Yagos — Division 5
Crowsnest / Pincher Creek Landfill Association
- Minutes of February 21, 2018
- Financial Statements for year ended December 31, 2017

IN-CAMERA

Legal — Financial Statement — FOIP Section 25
Legal — Recycling — FOIP Section 21

Labour — Personnel — FOIP Section 19

Labour — Personnel — FOIP Section 19

N S



l. NEW BUSINESS

J. ADJOURNMENT



Bl


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
B1


Introduction

A Key Performance Indicator (KPI) is a metric used to evaluate factors that are crucial to
the success of an organization. The importance of each KPI may change with time
depending on the goals and strategic plans of the organization.

When reviewing KPIs, it is important to not only compare to past performance and
desired goals, but to consider industry standards and benchmarks.

The following information has been provided in order to provide you some insight into
some important KPIs for your organization.

It is important to review the underlying information of your municipality in order to
determine cause and create desired change.

The underlying data for this report was taken from the financiol dota publicly available found on the Alberta
Municipal Affairs website.

Comparable municipalities were determined based on a range of 75% to 125% of your population.















MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017








































































B2

Pincher Creek Airport Presentation

By David Cox Pincher Creek Emergency Services Commission

To Pincher Creek MD Council
April 10, 2018

Air—.A.—L [ PN

Pincher Creek Airport is the only fixed wing facility in the area serving the MD, the Town,
Cowley, and CNP

*Used by private aircraft owners

*Used by companies such as Shell Wateron
*Used by the Canadian Military occasionally
*Used by GOA and RCMP

*Used by fixed wing ambulance on an as needed basis
-Fixed wing ambulance is sometimes the only air option due to load limits on helicopters
-May be day or night
-Between Pincher Creek and CNP, 15 to 20 flights/ year

*Summer, the airport is the Primary tanker base for A+ F (longer runway than Springback which
limits that airport’s the tanker aircraft capability)
-Tankers respond to all of southern Alberta, Southeastern BC, and US if needed

Ai-~~=* *vailability

Challenges to availability

Winter

*Snow plowing maintenance a low priority

All year

*Run way lights are vulnerable to power outages
-System wired for backup pov , but no generator
-Bringing an auxiliary generator out not feasible due to time involved to set up and fuel
limits of circling aircraft

NOTAM (Notice to Airmen) required any time airport is out of service
-Without a NOTAM airport is open for service


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
B2


*Change snow plowing to a higher priority

*Install Auxiliary powerplant at airport wired to start automatically when power goes out
*While water is not needed for air tanker operations, potable water at the airport would be an
asset to its potential growth



C1


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
C1


Cc2


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
C2








C3


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
C3























D1


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
D1


j.  All other terms used in this bylaw shall have the meaning as is assigned to them in the
Municipal Government Act, as amended from time to time.

Part 1 — Development Authority

3. The Development Authority for the Municipality is:

a. The Designated Officer, for an application for development approval which is a
permitted use under the Land Use Bylaw and which complies with the requirements and
regulations set out in the Land Use Bylaw.

b. The Municipal Planning Commission established under this Bylaw, when the
application for development permit is:

1) A discretionary use under the Land Use Bylaw; or

2) A permitted use under the Land Use Bylaw which does not otherwise comply
with the requirements and regulations as set out in the Land Use Bylaw.

4. Notwithstanding Section 2, the Designated Officer may forward any application for
development approval to the Municipal Planning Commission for a decision.

Powers and Duties

5. The Development Authority has those powers and duties as set out in the Act, the Land Use
Bylaw and this Bylaw, and any regulations made thereunder.

Appointment of Development Officer

6. Council may, by resolution, appoint a designated officer as Development Officer(s). The
powers and duties of the development officer shall be outlined in the Municipal District of
Pincher Creek No. 9 Land Use Bylaw.

PART 2 — Municipal Planning Commission

Establishment of the Municipal Planning Commission

7. That a Commission known as the Municipal Planning Commission of the Municipal District
of Pincher Creek No. 9, is hereby established.

Membership

8. The MPC shall be composed of not less than seven (7) persons as follows:

e 2 members at large, who are adult residents of the Municipal District of Pincher Creeck
No. 9; and
e 5 members of council.

All appointments by resolution of Council.
9. Four (4) of the members of the MPC shall constitute a quorum.

10. A member of the MPC shall not be appointed to the Subdivision and Development Appeal
Board.

11. Appointments to the MPC shall be made for a term of 2 years.
12. When a person ceases to be a member of the MPC before the expiration of his term, council

shall appoint another person for the unexpired portion of that term within 60 days of
receiving notice of the vacancy.

Bylaw No. 1285-18 P 2of4






Repeal

24. Bylaw No.854 and amendments 1016-98 and 1034-00, being the former Municipal
Planning Commission bylaw, is hereby repealed.

READ a first time this 27™ day of March, 2018.
READ a second time this 27" day of March, 2018.

READ a third time and finally PASSED this day of ,2018.

Reeve Chief Administrative Officer

Bylaw No. 1285-18 Page 4 of 4






9. The Subdivision Authority, when considering an application for subdivision approval,
is not required to hold a hearing.

10. Members of the Subdivision Authority shall not be members of the Subdivision and
Development Appeal Board.

11. The secretary of the Subdivision Authority shall ensure the following records are kept:
a. the minutes of all meetings;
b. the vote of the members of the Subdivision Authority on the decision;
c. such other matters as the Subdivision Authority may direct.

12. The planning advisor for the Subdivision Authority shall carry out the following
powers, duties and functions:

a. providing of advice to applicants for subdivision approval,

b. processing of applications for subdivision including the following:
1) the collecting of all pertinent subdivision approval fees;
2) determining if the application is complete;

3) the processing of notification of applicants, pertinent agencies, government
departments and adjacent land owners;

4) the compilation and documentation of all pertinent comments of those persons
and local authorities to which the notice of application was given;

5) the preparation of draft resolutions for consideration by the Subdivision
Authority;

6) the conveyance of notification of final subdivision approval to the registered
owner and/or the authorized Agent and all notified agencies, government
departments and adjacent land owners;

c. the appearance at meetings of the Subdivision Authority;

conducting site inspection (where feasible to do so) at the location of the proposed
application for subdivision approval;

e. the finalization and required endorsement of plans of surveyor other instruments
for registration purposes at Land Titles Office;

f. the maintenance of a control registry and corresponding archival information
relating to the application for subdivision approval on behalf of the municipality;

g. records of all application, notices of meetings and of persons to whom they were
sent, written representations, the decision with reasons;

h. all notices, decisions, and orders made on appeal from the decision of the
Subdivision Authority;

1. such other matters as provided in the planning advisors contract.
13. This bylaw comes into effect upon third and final reading thereof.

14. Bylaw No. 1031-99 is hereby rescinded.

READ a first time this 27" day of March, 2018.
READ a second time this 27" day of March, 2018.

READ a third time and finally PASSED this day of , 2018.

Reeve Chief Administrative Officer

Bylaw No. 1286-18 Page 2 of 2






10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

—

The council may remove an appointed member of the Subdivision and Development
Appeal Board if:

a. in the opinion of Council, a member is not performing his/her duties
satisfactorily in accordance with the Act, this bylaw, or in consideration of the
principles of judicial fairness and natural justice; or

b. a member is absent for more than three (3) consecutive hearings of the Board
without reason; or

c. the member has not fulfilled or maintained their training and certification in
accordance with the Regulation; or

d. in the opinion of Council, a member is reasonably unable to fulfil his/her duties.

When a person ceases to be a member of the Subdivision and Development Appeal
Board before the expiration of his/her term the applicable council may, by
resolution, appoint another person for the unexpired portion of that term.

The members of the Subdivision and Development Appeal Board panel shall elect
one of themselves as chair for the purpose of a hearing.

An order, decision, approval, notice or other thing made, given or issued by the panel
shall be signed by the chair or a person authorized to do so.

In the absence or unavailability of the chair to sign an appeal panel decision, another
panel member shall be designated and authorized by the panel to do so.

Each member of the Subdivision and Development Appeal Board shall be entitled to
such remuneration, travelling and living expenses as may be fixed from time to time
by the council.

The council may, by resolution, appoint a Clerk or Clerks who shall attend all
hearings or meetings of the Subdivision and Development Appeal Board, but shall
not vote on any matter before Board. The Clerk must complete the required training
in accordance with the Regulation and the municipality shall report to the minister a
list of all clerks and the status of their training.

The Clerk shall receive, on behalf of the Board, appeals which have been served
upon the Board and shall notify the appropriate board members to constitute a panel
to hear the appeal.

The Clerk of the Subdivision and Development Appeal Board shall keep the
following records of appeals with respect to:

a. the minutes of all hearings in accordance with the Act;
b. records of all notices of meetings and of persons to whom they were sent;

c. copies of all written representations to the Subdivision and Development Appeal
Board;

notes as to each representation;

the names of those making representations at the meeting;

the decision of the Subdivision and Development Appeal Board;
the reasons for the decision;

PR oo a

records of all notices of decision and of persons to whom they were sent;

all notices, decisions and orders made on appeal from the decision of the
Subdivision and Development Appeal Board;

j. such other matters as the Subdivision and Development Appeal Board may

direct.

The Subdivision and Development Appeal Board shall hold hearings as required
pursuant to the Act on a date to be determined by the panel members.

The decision of the majority of the members present at a meeting shall be deemed to
be the decision of the whole Subdivision and Development Appeal Board.

Bylaw No. 1287-18 Page 2 of 3






TO:

Ela

MD OF PINCHER CREEK

Al..L 3,2018

Roland Milligan, Interim Chief Administrative Officer

FROM: Leo Reedyk, Director of Operations

SUBJECT:  AIRPORT LEASE AGREEMENT

Origin:

The Municipal District leases properties at the Airport for private and commercial
ventures. The historical Airport Lease Agreement is over 20 years old and requires
updating. A lease rate for property at the airport is not included in our Policy C-FIN-27
Fees and Charges Policy except the notation that the lease rate varies by agreement. A
new lease will be required to accommodate the sale of a private hanger.

Background:

In 2017 Administration requested an updated document template from Brownlee to
accommodate future leases on the airport property. The attached document would
replace the outdated one currently in use to protect the Municipality’s interests.

In addition to the lease document, the rates charged by the Municipal District per square
meter range from $0.50 to $0.75 per square meter per year. Rates charged per square
meter at other Alberta Airports are:

11 ethhridge | Red Neer Grand Prairie | Lloydmin<rer IVianning
| $2.90 | $3.U/ $2.75 $1.40 $1.25

The 90 day notice clause in the existing agreements could be used to get all tenants on the
same lease rate.

Rec mndation:

THAT the report from the Director of Operations, dated April 3, 2018 regarding the
Airport Lease Agreement be received;

AND THAT Council direct administration to implement the new Airport Lease
Agreement as leases come up for renewal;

Presented to Council April 10,2018 Page 1



AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E1a


Aivu FURTHER THAT Policy C-FIN-27 include Airport Land Lease Rates at the rate of
$0.75/square meter per year for hanger developments.

Respectfully Submitted,

Leo Reedyn

Attachments

Reviewed by: Roland Milligan, Interim Chief Administrative Utticer Date

Presented to Council April 10,2018 Page 2












liability or damages pertaining thereto. Payments shall either be made directly to the supplier of the services
or equipment, or shall be paid to the Landlord as reimbursement for payment of such costs if paid by the
Landlord to the said supplier(s).

6.3 The Tenant's Taxes

Subject to the availability of any exemption under the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26,
as amended from time to time, the Tenant shall, pay when and if they shall become due and payable, all
real estate taxes, assessments, rates and charges and other government impositions, general or special,
ordinary or extraordinary, foreseen or unforeseen, of every kind, including assessments for local or public
improvements and school taxes which may at any time during the Term be imposed, assessed or levied, in
respect of the Leased Premises and Tenant's leasehold interest in the Lands and all fixtures and
improvements from time to time located thereon, or which, howsoever imposed, might constitute a lien on
the Leased Premises or any part thereof or a liability of the Landlord.

ARTICLE 7 - QUIET ENJOYMENT
71 The Tenant's Quiet Enjoyment

Subject to the terms, covenants and conditions contained in this Lease, the Landlord covenants that upon
duly performing and observing all its covenants and obligations contained in this Lease the Tenant shall and
may peaceably possess and enjoy the Leased Premises for the Term without any interruption or
disturbance from the Landlord or any other person lawfully claiming by, from or under the Landliord.

ARTICLE 8 - ADDITIONAL TENANT OBLIGATIONS
8.1 Use of Leased Premises

The Leased Premises shall be used continuously during the Term for the Permitted Use, and for no other
use. The Tenant shall not carry on nor permit to be carried on upon the Leased Premises or any property
neighbouring or surrounding the Leased Premises any other trade, business or activity, without the prior
written consent of the Landlord, which consent may be unreasonably withheld.

8.2 Evidence of Payments

The Tenant shall produce upon the reasonable request of the Landlord, satisfactory evidence of the due
payment by the Tenant of all payments required to be made by the Tenant under this Lease.

8.3 No Nuisance

The Tenant shall not at any time during the Term, use, exercise or carry on or permit or suffer to be used,
exercised or carried on, in, about or upon the Leased Premises or any part thereof any waste or any
offensive act, trade, business, occupation or calling, and no act, matter or thing whatsoever shall at any time
during the Term be done in, about or upon the Leased Premises or any part thereof which shall be
inconsistent or incompatible with the Permitted Use of the Leased Premises, or which may be or grow to the
annoyance, nuisance, damage or disturbance of the occupants and other users of the Leased Premises, as
well as occupants of [ands and property owners in the vicinity of the Leased Premises.

8.4 Compliance with Laws

The Tenant shall comply promptly at its expense with all laws, by-laws, ordinances, regulations,
requirements and recommendations of any and all federal, provincial, civic, municipal and other lawful
authorities, which may be applicable to the Tenant, to the manner of use or operation of the Leased
Premises, or the making by the Tenant of any repairs, alterations, changes or improvements to the Leased
Premises.

{B2122119.DOC;2}



[OPTION 1 - If the Municipality wants the Tenant to remove any fixtures or improvements attached
to the Leased Premises (e.g. structures, hangar, etc.) at the expiry or earlier termination of the
Lease, then use Option 1 and Article 14, and delete Option 2 (Section 8.6)]

8.5 Alterations

The Tenant shall not without the prior written consent of the Landlord, which consent may not be
unreasonably withheld, excavate, drill, install, erect, or permit to be excavated, drilled, installed or erected
over, under or through the Leased Premises, any pit, foundation, pavement, building, fence, sidewalk,
installation, addition, partition, sign, alteration, antenna or other structure or improvement.

[OPTION 2 - if the Municipality wants the Tenant’s fixtures or improvements to be left in place and
subsequently owned by the Municipality at the expiry or earlier termination of the Lease then use
Option 2 (Section 8.6), and delete Option 1 and Article 14, then re-adjust the numbering
accordingly.]

8.6 Improvements, Alterations, Fixtures

(a) The Tenant shall not without the prior written consent of the Landlord, which consent may
not be unreasonably withheld, excavate, drill, install, erect, or permit to be excavated,
drilled, installed or erected over, under or through the Leased Premises, any pit, foundation,
pavement, building, fence, sidewalk, installation, addition, partition, sign, alteration, antenna
or other structure or improvement.

(b) Upon the expiration of other termination of this Lease, all alterations, additions, partitions,
improvements or structures which may have been made or installed by the Tenant upon or
within the Lands or Leased Premises, (whether with or without the Landlord's consent) and
which are attached to the Lands shall remain upon and be surrendered with the Leased
Premises as a part of the Leased Premises without disturbance, molestation or injury and
such be and become the absolute property of the Landlord without compensation to the
Tenant.

(c) Notwithstanding Section 8.5(b), the Landlord may, by written notice to the Tenant prior to or
after the termination or expiration of the Term, require the removal at the expense of the
Tenant of any and all alterations, additions, partitions, improvements or structures on the
Leased Premises and/or the restoration of the Leased Premises to the  ne condition that
they were in before any alterations, additions, partitions, improvements or structures were
made, erected or installed, such work to be done by or at the direction of the Landlord.

(d) Notwithstanding Section 8.5(b), but subject to Section 8.5(a) and 8.5(c), and provided the
Tenant has paid the Rent and performed and observed all the covenants and conditions
contained in this Lease, the Tenant shall at the expiration or other sooner termination of this
Lease have the right to remove its trade fixtures, but shall make good the damage caused
to the Lands or Leased Premises which may result from such installation and removal
including the restoration of the Lands or Leased Premises to the same condition that they
were in before any improvement, alteration or fixture was made, erected or installed, such
work to be done by or at the direction of the Landlord.

8.7 Signs
Any signs placed by the Tenant on or around the Leased Premises shall be first approved in writing by the

Landlord, such approva! is not to be unreasonably withheld. The Tenant shall be responsible for the
maintenance and repair of any signs to the sole satisfaction of the Landlord.

{B2122119.DOC;2}



8.8 ° .ant’s Repairs

The Tenant covenants to perform non-structural maintenance, repair, cleaning and caretaking to keep the
Leased Premises in a first class condition (including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, replacing
damaged glass, repairing damage caused by trespassers and repairing plumbing in the Leased Premises)
as determined by the Landlord. The Tenant shall take all preventative measures and obey all operating
instructions of the Landlord relative thereto, and shall not permit waste. The Tenant shall make all repairs
and maintenance with all due diligence and at its sole cost.

8.9 Maintenance by Tenant

The Tenant covenants that the Landlord or its authorized agents may enter the Leased Premises at all
reasonable times to determine the condition or state of the Leased Premises. The Tenant will forthwith
repair any damage or undertake that maintenance required, as directed by the Landlord. In the event that
the . 2nant fails to make such repair or maintenance, or repair or maintain to the satisfaction of the Landlord,
the Landlord on not less than five (5) days notice to the Tenant or, in the event of any emergency forthwith
without notice, may make the repairs or perform the maintenance without liability to the Tenant for any loss
or damage that may occur to the Tenant's fixtures or other property, or the Tenant's business. Upon
completion thereof, the Tenant will pay the Landlord’s cost of the repair or maintenance, plus twenty per
cent (20%) for overhead, on demand as rent. The Tenant agrees that the maintenance or repair by the
Landlord pursuant to this paragraph is not re-entry nor a breach of quiet enjoyment contained in this Lease.
Failure by the Landlord to give direction to repair or to maintain shall not relieve the Tenant from its
obligation to repair or to maintain.

ARTICLE 9 - INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY
9.1 Tenant's Insurance

The Tenant shall purchase at its own expense and maintain in force during the Term and any renewal term
the following insurance coverage satisfactory to the Landlord, acting reasonably:

(@) during any periods of construction upon the Lands, property insurance in an amount not
less than One Hundred (100%) percent of the replacement value of the improvements
upon the Lands, providing coverage by way of a "Builder's All Risk” policy;

(b) comprehensive general liability or commercial general liability insurance against, among
other things, claims for personal injury, death, property damage, or third party or public
liability claims arising from any one accident or occurrence upon, in or about the Leased
Premises (as well as the balance of the Lands, to the extent that the Tenant's activities
occur thereon) of and from any cause to an amount of not less than TWO MILLION
($2,000,000.00) DOLLARS (or from time to time such greater amounts as are sufficient, as
determined from time to time by the Landlord acting reasonably, to afford equivalent
protection against all such claims) in respect of any one accident or occurrence;

(c) where applicable, broad form comprehensive boiler and machinery insuran  on a blanket
repair and replacement basis with limits for each accident in an amount not less than the
full replacement costs of all property owned by the Tenant and located in or upon the
L. d Premises; and

(d) insurance on the Leased Premises, the equipment, and all fixtures and improvements
within the Leased Premises from loss or damage caused by:

(i) fire and other perils as may from time to time be included in fire insurance policies

generally available to owners of commercial premises in the Province of Alberta;
and

{B2122119.D0C;2}



(ii) risks normally insured against by owners of premises in the Province of Alberta for
a Leased Premises of the construction, location and use similar to the Leased
Premises.

Such insurance shall be for the full replacement value of the Leased Premises, the
Equipment and all fixtures and improvements within the Leased Premises.

(&) such further or other coverage as the Landlord may deem appropriate from time to time.
9.2 Additional Insured

The insurance purchased and maintained by the Tenant pursuant to Paragraph 9.1 of this Lease shall,
where applicable and available on a reciprocal basis, include the Tenant and the Landlord, as the case may
be, as an additional insured such that the insurance coverage is to apply to the parties as their respective
interests may appear from time to time.

9.3 Additional Terms of Insurance

All such policies of insurance maintained by the Landlord and the Tenant may contain a waiver or wavers of
subrogation against the other party and its insurers, provided that such waiver is reciprocal within the
insurance coverage and is first approved by the Landlord's and the Tenant's insurer.

9.4 Copies of Policies

The Landlord and the Tenant shall when requested, and no more often than on an annual basis, provide the
other party with copies of each insurance policy purchased pursuant to the terms of this Lease.

9.5 Proceeds of Insurance

Subject to the provisions contained within Article 10 of this Lease, the proceeds of any insurance which may
become payable under any policy of insurance effected pursuant to this Lease shall be payable to the
Landlord and the Tenant as their respective interests may appear.

9.6 Repair Obligations

Subject to the provisions contained within Article 10 of this Lease, where repairs are necessary due to
damage or destruction of the Leased Premises, the equipment, or any fixtures and improvements in or upon
the Leased Premises, the Tenant shall promptly effect such repairs to the extent of the proceeds of
insurance received.

9.7 Indemnity

The Tenant shall indemnify and save harmless the Landlord from any and all liabilities, damages, expenses,
costs, fees (including all legal and other professional costs on a solicitor and his own client full indemnity
basis), claims, suits or actions arising out of or caused by the use and occupation of the Lands, the balance
of the Lands, and the Leased Premises by the Tenant, and its respective employees, agents, and those for
whose actions they are responsible for in law including, without restriction, such liabilities, damages,
expenses, costs, fees, claims, suits or actions arising from:

(@) any breach, violation, or non-performance of any covenant, condition or agreement in this
Lease;

(b) any damage to property; or injury to any person or persons including death;

(c) any environmental damage and resulting clean up costs; and

(d) all claims arising under the Workers’ Compensation Act, Occupational Health and Safety

Act, Occupiers’ Liability Act or other statute that imposes liability upon the owners or
occupiers of land or in relation to the operation of a worksite.

{B2122119.D0C;2}



.is indemnity shall specifically exclude any and all such claims, costs and expenses or portions thereof
arising from the negligence of the partied to be indemnified, or the : for whose actions the | ty to be
indemnified is legally responsible for. This indemnity shall survive the expiry or sooner termination of this
Lease.

9.8 [OPTIONAL] Additional Security

As additional security for the performance of the Tenant's obligations under the terms of this Lease, the
Tenant hereby mortgages and charges to the Landlord all of the Tenant's present and after acquired
personal property and all proceeds thereof. The Tenant waives any requirement to receive verification
statements or financing change statements in relation to the registration of any notice of the foregoing.

ARTICLE 10 - DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION
10.1  Damage or Destruction of Leased Premises

In the event that the Leased Premises is damaged or destroyed by any cause whatsoever, the Tenant shall
promptly repair such damage subject to the following provisions:

€)] if. in the reasonable opinion of the Tenant, the Leased Premises cannot be rebuilt or made
fit for the purposes of the Tenant within one hundred and eighty (180) days of the damage
or destruction;

(b) if, in the reasonable opinion of the Tenant, no less than fifty (50%) percent of the Leased
Premises requires repair or reconstruction; or

(c) if, in the reasonable opinion of the Tenant, the repair or reconstruction of the Leased
Premises is not financially reasonable given the age of the Hangar, the Equipment and
improvements, or given the availability of alternative premises for Leased Premises and/or
use by the Tenant,

then instead of being required to rebuild or make the Leased Premises fit for use by the Tenant, the Tenant
may, at its option, terminate this Lease by giving the Landlord sixty (60) days' notice of termination and the
Tenant shall deliver up possession of the Lands to the Landlord in the condition required under the terms of
this Lease on or before the expiry of such sixty (60) days.

10.2  Distribution of Insurance Proceeds
Notwithstanding anything contained within this Lease, the proceeds of any insurance received by the
Tenant as a result of the damage or destruction of the Leased Premises, or a portion thereof, shall be dealt

with as follows:

(a) subject to the provisions of Paragraph 10.1 of this Lease, applied to the costs of repairing,
replacing, or reconstructing the Leased Premises; and

(b) in the event of a termination pursuant to Paragraph 10.1 of this Lease, the proceeds shall
be applied in the following order:

(i) the payment in full of any and all costs incurred in relation to the demolition of the
Hangar and restoration of the Lands and Leased Premises in accordance with
Paragraph 14.1(b) of this Lease; and

(i) any remaining portion of the insurance proceeds shall be paid to the Tenant.

{B2122119.DOC;2}



10.3  Notice of Accidents, Defects or Damages

The Tenant shall immediately advise the Landlord, and promptly thereafter by notice in writing confirm such
advice to the Landlord, of any accident to or defect in the Equipment, plumbing, gas pipes, \  2r pip
heating, ventilating, and air conditioning apparatus, electrical equipment, conduits, or wiring, or of any
damage or injury to the Leased Premises, or any part thereof, howsoever caused. Provided, however, that

in no way shall this provision be construed in such a manner as to obligate the Landlord to effect any repairs
or replacement.

ARTICLE 11 — SUB-LETTING AND ASSIGNMENT
111 Assignment and Subletting
The Tenant shall not assign its interest in this Lease in whole or in part, nor sublet all or any part of the
Leased Premises, nor part with or share possession of all or any portion of the Leased Premises, nor

mortgage by either specific or floating charge or encumber in any way whatsoever this Lease or the Leased
Premises, without the prior written consent of the Landlord.

ARTICLE 12 - DEFAULT
121 Events of Default

Each and every one of the following events shall constitute an event of default (hereinafter referred to as an
~ rent of Default"):

(a) if the Tenant fails to make any payment, in whole or in part, of any amount payable to the
Tenant as provided in this Lease;

(b) if the Tenant ceases to carry on the Permitted Use;

(c) if the Tenant is or becomes, insolvent or bankrupt or if the Tenant:
(i) makes any assignment for the benefit of creditors,
(i)  is declared bankrupt,

(i)  seeks the protection of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act, the Companies
Creditor's Arrangement Act or like legislation,

(iv)  disposes of all or substantially all of its assets without the consent of the Landlord,
or

(v) commences proceedings to wind itself up or if winding up proceedings are
commenced in respect of the Tenant; and

(d) if the Landlord or the . unant neglects or fails to observe, perform or comply with any of its
obligations pursuant to this Lease, howsoever arising, and fails to remedy such default
within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt of written notice from the Landlord requiring
that the curing the default.

12.2  Termination
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, in addition to any and all other rights and remedies available to
landlords the Landlord may terminate this Lease by delivery of notice in writing to that effectto t  party in

default. Such termination shall not limit in any way the Landlord's recourse to any remedies available to it at
law, equity or otherwise.

{B2122119.D0C;2}






-11-

ARTICLE 14 - REMOVAL AND RESTORATION
141 Removal and Restoration

Prior to or upon the expiration of the Term or renewal term, as the case may be, or upon the earlier
termination of this Lease (excluding termination pursuant to Paragraph 10.1):

@ the Tenant shall remove the Hangar and any and all buildings, shelters, structures,
alterations and improvements whatsoever constructed upon the Lands and restore the
Leased Premises to substantially the same condition that exis 1 prior to the
commencement of this Lease;

(b) in the event that the Tenant fails to remove from the Leased Premises, the Hangar,
buildings, shelters, structures, alterations and improvements whatsoever the Landlord may
take possession and ownership of the Hangar, any buildings, shelters, structures,
alterations and improvements without any liability for compensation to the Tenant
whatsoever, and without prejudice to the Landlords rights and remedies under this Lease
including, without restriction, damages for breach of the Tenant's obligations to remove the
Hangar and restore the Lands;

(c) the Tenant agrees that it shall remove all tanks, pipes, apparatus and equipments whether
above ground or under ground and undertake an environmental assessment in accordance
with the requirements of any provincial laws and regulations to determine whether there is
any contamination by any materials as aforesaid, and if so, the Tenant shall restore the soil
and underground under the Leased Premises to satisfy the Aiberta Government guidelines
(or the then current provincial regulations), and restore the paving and/or other
improvements, as the case may be, as may reasonable be required by the Landlord as a
result of such remediation. If the contamination has migrated off-site, the Tenant agrees to
indemnify and hold harmless the Landlord with regard to off-si assessment and
remediation, including any costs, damages, causes of action, claims or demands which
may arise from such contamination and/or the assessment and remediation.

14.2 Removal of Chattels

Within sixty (60) days after the expiration or other termination of this Lease, the Tenant may remove all his
chattels and buildings from the Leased Premises, but thereafter the Tenant may not remove or dismantle
any chattels or buildings without the prior written consent of the Landlord. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
the Tenant has not removed all the chattels or buildings within sixty (60) days after the expiration or
termination of this Lease, the Landlord, at its sole discretion, may declare the said chattels, buildings or
parts thereof remaining on the Leased Premises, to be the absolute property of the Landlord. The Landlord
may remove or have  noved the said chattels, buildings or parts thereof from the Leased Premises and
charge all costs of removal thereof to the Tenant, and the cost shall be deemed a debt due, owing and
payable by the Tenant to the Landlord forthwith on demand.

ARTICLE1¢ GENERAL
15.1 Grants of Interests

Provided always that the Tenant's use and enjoyment of the Leased Premises is not significantly interrupted
or prevented, the Tenant's leasehold interest in the Leased Premises is and shall be subject to any and all
grants of easements, utility right of ways, or other similar interests in the Lands by the Landiord, whether
presently existing or to be granted in the future. In this regard, the Tenant acknowledges that the Landlord
may deem it necessary or appropriate from time to time to cause or allow third parties, or the Landiord itself,
to construct and install permanent underground or above-ground utility lines, pipeline facilities and
transmission lines which will cross the Leased Premises. The Tenant acknowledges and agrees that it shall
in no way interfere or hinder the construction, installation, repair or maintenance of such lines or facilities

{B2122119.D0C;2}





















Approved by Council
Revised by Council
Revised by Council
Revised by Council

M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

CORPORATE PC™ "CY

. C-FIN-27
FEES AND CHARGES
All Items GST Extra Except
SCHEDULE 1 * GST Included

** GST Exempt
Date: August 25,2015
Date: October 11, 2016
Date: January 10,2017
Date: July 11, 2017

Administration

Assessment
Appeals

Assessment Details

Assessment Roll Viewing

G.LS. Aerial Photography 8 %27 X 117

Administration Cont’d Next Page

n”x17mr

QGreater than
11X 17"

Digital

Commercial $50.00 Parcel **

Farmland $20.00 Parcel **

Industrial $500.00 Parcel **

Residential $20.00 Parcel **

Taxpayer or Agent No Charge

Non Taxpayer $10.00 per Parcel **

Taxpayer or Agent No Charge

Non Taxpayer $10.00 per Parcel **

Taxpayer or Agent $2.50 each

Non Taxpayer $5.00 each

Taxpayer or Agent $5.00 each

Non Taxpayer $10.00 each

Taxpayer or Agent $25.00 each

Non Taxpayer $50.00 each

Taxpayer or Agent $5.00 per Section Plus

$30.00 per Hour Admin.

“sts plus
Media Costs

Non Taxpayer $10.00 per Section plus

$30.00 per Hour Admin.

Costs plus
Media Costs

Page 1 of 7



M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

CORPORATE POLICY

FEES AND CHARGES

C-FIN-27

All Items GST Extra Except

SCHEDULE 1 * GST Included
** GST Exempt
Approved by Council Date: August 25,2015
Revised by Council Date: October 11, 2016
Revised by Council Date: January 10,2017
Revised by Council Date: July 11, 2017
Custom G.L.S. Work Taxpayer or Agent $50.00 plus
$30.00 per Hour plus
Media Costs
Non Taxpayer $100.00 plus
$30.00 per Hour plus
Media Costs
Information Less than 15 Minutes Taxpayer or Agent No Charge
Requests of Staff Time Non Taxpayer $25.00
Greater than 15 Minutes Taxpayer or Agent $25.00 plus
of Staff Time $25.00 per Hour After
First Hour
Non Taxpayer $50.00 plus
$25.00 per Hour After
First Hour
Leases M.D. Property By Agreement Varies

Road Allowance

Maps Paper Map

Laminated Map

Map Books

Administration Cont’d Next Page

for Each % Mile or Less

Museum

Picked Up

Folded and Mailed
Rolled and Mailed

Picked Up
Rolled and Mailed

Picked Up
Mailed

$20.00 year *

$9.00 each

$10.00 each
$12.50 each
$25.00 each

* X X ¥

$20.00 each *
$35.00 each

*

$20.00 each *
$30.00 each *

Page 2 of 7



M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

CORPORATET "~ "CY
C-FIN-27

FEES AND CHARGES
All Items GST Extra Except

SCHEDULE 1 * GST Included
** GST Exempt
Approved by Council Date: August 25,2015
Revised by Council Date: October 11, 2016
Revised by Council Date: January 10, 2017
Revised by Council Date: July 11, 2017
Digital $10.00 plus Media Costs
Photocopies
Non-Profit Organizations at CAQO’s Discretion No Charge
M.D. Bylaws $0.25 per Page **
Council/Committee Minutes Up to 6 Months Old One Set No Charge
More than One Set $0.50 per Page **
Minutes Older than 6 Months $0.50 per Page **
Miscellaneous Information $0.25 per page **
Complete Agenda Packages Current $10.00 per Package **
Previous $15.00 per Package **
Promotional Merchandise Lapel Pins $2.00 each
Caps $20.00 each
Miscellaneous Merchandise Promotional Material Cost plus 20%
Taxes Tax Certificates $25.00 Parcel **
Tax Notification Registration $25.00 Parcel **

Applied to Tax Account

Tax Receipts Current Year Taxpayer or Agent No Charge
Non Taxpayer Not for Sale
Prior Years Taxpayer or Agent $2.00 each **
Non Taxpayer Not for Sale
Tax Sale Fees and Charges Cost Recovery Plus

$25.00 Parcel **
Applied to Tax Account

Page 3 of 7



M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

CORPORATE PC™ "CY
C-FIN-27

FEES AND CHARGES
All Items GST Extra Except

SCHEDULE 1 * GST Included
** GST Exempt
Approved by Council Date: August 25, 2015
Revised by Council Date: October 11, 2016
Revised by Council Date: January 10, 2017
Revised by Council Date: July 11, 2017

Agricultural and Environmental Services

Products
Herbicide Premix 2,4D/Banvel $10.00 0L Jug *
Roundup $10.00 10L Jug *
Rentals
Live Skunk Traps Returned Within a Month ~ No Charge
Returned After One Month  $60.00 each
Livestock Equipment Weekend Considered as One Day
Electronic Scale $40.00 day Plus
$20.00 Damage Deposit **
Hoof Trimming Table $40.00 day Plus
$20.00 Damage Deposit **
Loading Chute $40.00 day Plus
$20.00 Damage Deposit **
Panels $40.00 day Plus
$20.00 Damage Deposit **
Squeeze $40.00 day Plus
$20.00 Damage Deposit **
Solar Watering System Demo Unit $150.00 Damage Deposit
Only *x

Agricultural and Environmental Services Cont’d Next Page

Page 4 of 7



M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

CORPORATE POLICY
C-FIN-27
FEES AND CHARGES
All Items GST Extra Except
SCHEDULE 1 * GST Included

Approved by Council
Revised by Council
Revised by Council
Revised by Council

Services Weed Spraying Equipment

Planning and Development

Publications
Area Structure Plans

Services
Amendments

Appeal Fees

Cash in Lieu of Land

Planning and Development Cont’d Next Page

Mule (side by side UTV)
Quad (ATV)

Roadside Sprayer

Small Boom Truck

Truck and Spot Sprayer

Burmis Lundbreck

Castle Mountain Resort

Oldman River Reservoir

Intermunicipal
Development Plan

Land Use Bylaw

** GST Exempt
Date: August 25, 2015
Date: October 11,2016
Date: January 10, 2017
Date: July 11, 2017

$100.00 per Hour
$75.00 per Hour

$150.00 per Hour
$125.00 per Hour

$125.00 per Hour

$20.00 each **
$20.00 each **
$20.00 each **

$15.00 each **
$30.00 each **

Municipal Development Plan $15.00 each **

Area Structure Plans
Intermunicipal Dev. Plan
Land Use Bylaw
Municipal Dev. Plan

Development
Subdivision

Subdivision

$600.00 each **
$600.00 each **
$600.00 each **
$600.00 each **

$600.00 each **
$600.00 each **

Market Value of Land

Page 5 of 7



M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

CORPORATE POLICY
C-FIN-27

FEES AND CHARGES
All Items GST Extra Except

SCHEDULE 1 * GST Included
** GST Exempt
Approved by Council Date: August 25, 2015
Revised by Council Date: October 11, 2016
Revised by Council Date: January 10, 2017
Revised by Council Date: July 11, 2017
Compliance Certificates $50.00 each  **
Development Permits Permitted Use $100.00 each **
Discretionary Use $150.00 each **
WECS Category 1 $100.00 per Titled Parcel **
WECS Category 2 $200.00 per Titled Parcel **
WECS Category 3 $500.00 per Titled Parcel **
MET Towers $100.00 each **
After Development
Commences Double Regular Fee **
Utility Permits $25.00 **
Rezoning/Redesignation Fee $600.00 each **
Road Closures Application $600.00 each **
Public Works
Services Grader Work Roads and Driveways Alberta Road Builders
Rate plus 20% **
0Oil, Gas and Seismic Activities Approaches $200.00 each **
Pipeline Crossings $200.00 each
Seismic Approvals $200.00 each
Rig Moves — Pre Inspec. $450.00 each
Rig Moves  Post Inspec. $450.00 each
S wPlowing Up To 15 minutes $80.00 **
Up To 30 minutes $160.00 **
Full Hour Alberta Road Builders

Rate plus 20% **

Public Works Cont’d Next Page

Page 6 of 7



M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

<IRI LRt o POL__ Y

C-FIN-27
FL..3 AND CHARGES
All Items GST Extra Except
SCHEDULE 1 * GST Included
** GST Exempt
Approved by Council Date: August 25, 2015
Revised by Council Date: October 11, 2016
Revised by Council Date: January 10, 2017
Revised by Council Date: July 11, 2017
Overweight / Over Dimension
Permit Fee $22.50
Land/ Crop Disturbance $250/ acre**
Products Dust Control Individual Taxpayers $250.00 per 100 Meters **
Commercial $600.00 per 100 Meters **
%s” Crushed Gravel Taxpayer or Agent Cost Plus 20% Plus
$0.50 Yard if MD Loaded
Non Taxpayer Council Resolution
Pit Run Gravel Taxpayer or Agent Cost Plus 20% Plus
$0.50 Yard if MD Loaded
Non Taxpayer Council Resolution
Water Standpipe Cowley $1.00 100 gallons **
Pincher Creek $1.00 100 gallons **

Page 7 of 7



Elb
Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Project Briefing

April 5, 2018 updates in Bold

The Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater project is broken into three components for tracking
and discussion purposes, water supply, water distribution and wastewater collection, and
wastewater treatment.

Further capacity study was required following the Provincial Governments announcement of
supplying water for Castle Parks and Castle Mountain Resort through the Regional Water

System.

A project information meeting was held September 27, 2017 in the Coalfields Hall from 4:00 to

7:00 pm.

1) The water supply project includes water treatment plant upgrades, piping to the Hamlet
including a booster pump station along the route, and a reservoir and re-chlorination unit.

a.

b.

Page |1

Council has commissioned MPE Engineering to do the detailed design and tender
of this project.

The project is in the detailed design phase in order to prepare a tender to go out in
the spring of 2017. A prequalification tender for contractors has been initiated, and
will close on June 26, 2017, to be followed by a tender for the pipeline and
mechanical components. 15 pipeline contractors and 7 mechanical contractors
responded to the prequalification processes.

MPE Engineering is doing a detailed survey of the Hamlet to confirm elevations of
homes. A letter of introduction from the MD is being supplied to residents
requesting the surveyors be allowed onto private property. Ongoing.

Negotiations with landowners is continuing and we will know in June the pipeline
route. Legal documents are being prepared for signatures. Completed.
Confirmation of the reservoir site layout has been finalized.

Construction for this component of the project is tentatively scheduled for
completion in the spring of 2018.

Location of Booster Pump Station is finalized.

Capacity issues with the Regional Water System infrastructure from the Oldman
dam reservoir to Beaver Mines resulting from the Castle Area Servicing were
identified and have now been incorporated into the systems design.
Prequalification of Pipeline and Mechanical contractors is complete. The pipeline
contract tender documents have been distributed to pipeline contractors. The
mechanical tender documents will be distributed in September/October.

The Pipeline Tender closed on August 30, 2017with 6 tenders being submitted.
The low tender was L.W. Dennis Contracting Ltd with a tender of $2,384,110.58.
A pre-construction meeting was held with LW Dennis Contracting Ltd to go over
project issues that had been identified. They will be mobilizing on October 30",
starting to fuse pipe on October 31, and starting pipeline boring soon after that.
Prequalified Mechanical Contractors received copies of the Mechanical Tender for
review. A pre-tender site meeting was held on November 1, 2017 to give
contractors an opportunity to see the site conditions for the mechanical portion of
the contract. The tender close date for the Mechanical contract is November 21,
2017. The tender close date was extended by 2 days to accommodate contractor
requests for more time to prepare.


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E1b


Boesro- R~ Water ar - YW-stewater Project B—~-~

m. The Mechanical Tender closed on November 23, 2107 with 4 tenders being

Qo

submitted. DMT Mechanical Ltd was the low tender with a tender of
$4,816,322.70.

The Mechanical Contractor noted that casings into the Oldman Dam
Reservoir are complete.

Following a winter shutdown, the pipeline contractor is looking to resume
construction of the pipeline.

The basement vault for the raw water intake building is installed.
Changes to the piping requirements inside the water treatment plant have
been initiated.

2) The water distribution and wastewater collection component of the project includes the
installation of pipes in the Hamlet to connect residents to the water reservoir and to
connect to the wastewater treatment force main.

a.

b.

Council has commissioned MPE Engineering to do the detailed design and tender
of this project.

At project start up meeting with MPE Engineering, options that provided fire flow
water capacity and gravity waste water collection for all sites were chosen. These
options were also noted as preferred at meetings held with local residents.

The detailed design phase of the project is expected to take most of 2017 with the
tender happening once a wastewater treatment option is chosen.

It is not expected to be constructed until 2018 or later, as in addition to being able
to tie into the reservoir, connection to a wastewater system for residents requires,
that a wastewater treatment system is operational as well.

Where required, easements for utility crossings on private land are being
identified. Consultation with land owners has been initiated.

Piping options that provide full fire flow and a fire smart community are being
reviewed.

Meetings with Atco Gas have identified areas where their upgrades in the Hamlet
and the water/wastewater systems have conflicts. The conflict areas have been
reviewed and proposed solutions found.

3) The wastewater treatment system component of the project includes a force main to the
wastewater treatment lagoon system from the Hamlet.

age

a.

The Municipal District is awaiting word in the spring of 2017 on a grant
application for this component of the project. On May 29, 2017 the Province
announced the AMWWP grant funded projects, no grant was received for this
project in 2017.

I dnegotiations for  easement for a wastewater force main are ongoi
Council has commissioned MPE Engineering to do a detailed design of this
component of the project.

Council has requested additional information on the Mill Creek site access.
Meetings with area residents were held to discuss preliminary details of the project
and to listen to their concerns.

A meeting to discuss access to the Mill Creek site was held with the local
landowner and MPE engineering. Options on access have been developed and are
awaiting review and comment.



Beaver M*~~~ Water ~»4 Wastey ~“-~ "~*--t Bri¢®~~

A Historical Resources Assessment of the site will be initiated in October 2017.
Aninfi  al walkabout with local landowners and Arrow Ar.  1eology Ltd.
occurred on the proposed site on Saturday October 21, 2107.

Boreholes and test pits to accommodate Historical Resource Impact Assessment
and Geotechnical investigation are completed. Awaiting reports before
determining next steps.

Following the determination that the Mill Creek site was not a viable site for a
wastewater lagoon, Council directed MPE Engineering to look at other sites and
options, as well as enter into communications with the Town of Pincher Creek to
determine if using their lagoon at Pincher Station is a viable option.

Meetings with the Town of Pincher Creek were held to look at the viability of
using the Town’s lagoon system.

A request for proposals is being developed to look for alternate sites for a
wastewater treatment system.

4) The Castle Servicing component of the project integrates the Castle requirements into the
Beaver Mines Servicing and Beaver Mines Water Distribution components of the project.
As well the pipeline from Beaver Mines to the Castle Parks and Castle Mountain Resort.

Page |3

a.

A meeting was held with Alberta Environment and Parks, Alberta Tourism,
Alberta Transportation, MPE Engineering and the MD to discuss some of the
technical issues associated with supplying water to Castle Parks and Castle
Mountain Resort. A meeting with Castle Mountain Resort staff identified historical
use and provided insight into the long term development requirements for water,
excluding water for making snow. Note: The water line to the Castle Mountain
Resort is not intended to supply water for snow making. The final report of the
Castle Area Servicing Study was provided on August 4, 2017.

MPE was commissioned to do the detailed design of the Castle Servicing project.
On November 1, 2017, the pipeline route to Castle Mountain Resort was toured to
determine the best route and any impediments to the project.

Castle Mountain Staff provided a tour of their facilities to familiarize MPE
Engineering with their equipment as the pipeline termination will need to be
coordinated.

On November 22, 2017 a meeting with Alberta Transportation, Alberta
Environment and Parks, MPE Engineering and Municipal District staff identified
project requirements for dispositions, regulatory reporting, routing, plan review
and probable timelines.

Detailed design of the project is underway and requirements for environmental
assessments are being identified to allow for spring and summer assessment work.



Elc

Director of Operations P ~—~>* A~wj! & 2018

Operations Activity Includes:

March 21, Beaver Mines Water Supply Mechanical Contract Project meeting;
March 27, Council meetings;

March 30-April 2, Easter Break;

April 4, Public Works Safety meeting;

April 4, Beaver Mines Water Supply Mechanical Contract Project meeting;
April 5, Agricultural Service Board meeting.

Agricultural and Environmental Services Activity Includes:

March 21, Design new signage for Deadstock Bins;

March 22, start preparing chemical sheds and trailer;

March 26, ASB Package;

March 26, South Region AAAF Meeting — County of Newell;

March 27, Southern Alberta Grazing School for Women Conference Call;
March 28, Transboundary Water, Weeds and Stewardship Tour Conference Call;
March 27 — 29, sprayers, maintenance, testing, cleaning;

March 29, AAAF Education Committee Conference Call;

April 4, Safety Admin, call list ready for upcoming weed season;

April 4 — 6, hauling units to PW for mounting, maintenance etc;

April 5, Agricultural Service Board Meeting.

Public Works Activity Includes:

Plowing Snow off roads and the Airport;
Sign / Guardrail Inspection and repairs;
Open plugged Culverts;

Gravel repairs in mud.

Public Works Safety meeting.

Upcoming:
e April 5, Animal Care during Emergency’s meeting;
e April 9, Agricultural and Environmental Services Departmental meeting;
e April 10, Council meetings;
e April 11, " :cupatic "H "handSa” y meetir —
e April 12, Staff meeting.

Project Update:

Community Resilience Program
o Regional Raw Water Intake, casing installed, building basement installed.


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E1c


e " pital Projects
o Beaver Mines Water Supply, Pipeline - Pipe installation waiting for better
weather, Mechanical Contractor working on intake and raw water pump house;
o Beaver Mines Water Distribution and Waste Water Collection, detailed design
and land negotiation ongoing;
o Beaver Mines Wastewater Treatment, looking at options as requested by Council;
o Castle Servicing, detailed design ongoing;

Call Logs — attached.
Recommendation:

That the Operations report for the period March 21, 2018 to April 5, 2018 and the call log be
received as information.

Prepared by: Leo Reedyk Date: April 5,2018
Reviewed by: Roland Milligan, Inter Date:

Submitted to: Council Date: April 10, 2018






1517 Advising a dead deer in the back yard. April 3, 2018 April 3, 2018 Will call her and advise to call fish &1 ]
1518 Advising there is about a foot of snow at his place April3,2018 | April3,2018 | 1O"Twentupthere andinere s only 3% of
1519 Calling to have plowing invoice explaned Mike April 3, 2018 April 3,2018 Done
1520 24 9 2W5 Request Plowing Brian April 3, 2018 April 3, 2018 Brian will do it today
Road used to be plowed on a regular basis
when it was a bus route. 1t has not seen a plow
1521 Nw 19 5 29 W4 Wondering about regular plowing on road Jared April 3, 2018 April 4, 2018 on a regular basis for some time. Can we look
into it and call him back. Jared looked at it hat
34" of snow. With a couple of drifts
1522 Conn Road Plow Main road Dave April 3, 2018 April 3,2018 Dave will do today
1523 Chr »s Road Main road need plowing Joe April 3, 2018 April 3, 2018 Joe will do today
1524 Airport Needs Plowing Jared April 3, 2018 April 3, 2018 Plowing April 4
: t S
1525 1050"  West Sharples Skyline & Waldron Flat Road needs plowing Brian April 4, 2018 On his schedule for April 4 or 5

C

























E3a

MD OF PINCHER CREEK
March 28, 2018
TO: Roland Milligan, Interim CAO
FROM: Janene Felker, Director of Finance

SUBJECT: 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Origin

The 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared and audited by Avail CPA and need to
be approved by Council.

2. Background/Comment

No significant issues were identified during our year end procedures and the audit went as smoothly as
possible.

3. Recommendation

That the report from the Director of Finance, dated March 28, 2018, regarding the 2017 Consolidated
Financial Statements be received;

And that the 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements, prepared and audited by Avail CPA, for the year
ended December 31, 2017 be approved.

Respe
Janen. . caae., ciicevios o 1 snaine€
Reviewed By: Roland Milligan, Interim CAO Date:

Presented to Council April 10, 2u1s


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E3a





Introduction

A Key Performance Indicator (KP1) is a metric used to evaluate factors that are crucial to
the success of an organization. The importance of each KPI may change with time
depending on the goals and strategic plans of the organization.

When reviewing KPIs, it is important to not only compare to past performance and
desired goals, but to consider industry standards and benchmarks.

The following information has been provided in order to provide you some insight into
some important KPIs for your organization.

it is important to review the underlying information of your municipality in order to
determine cause and create desired change.

The underlying data for this report was taken from the financial data publicly available found an the Alberta
Municipal Affairs website.

Camparable municipalities were determined based on a range af 75% to 125% of your population.






MUNICIPAL DISIRICI OF PINLFl-l:K (_'m:E_K NO. Y

INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the year ended December 31, 2017

2013 2014 2015 2016 it
SUSTAINABILITY INDICATORS, CONTINUED

Operating expenses to taxable assessment
The "total expenses-to-taxable assessment" 1.80%
indicator provides the trend of government 0% 1_ B} ‘\ l
spending over time in relation to the growth ! T [T T e e {~ e
in the economy. A trend that shows total 1.40%
expense is growing at a faster rate than the 1.20%
growth in the economy may not be 1.00% P —
sustainable. 0.80%

0.60% —_ —

0.40% '

0.20% | :

0.00% ! 5 :

e PINCHER CREEK NO. 9, M.D. OF = Punicipal average Comparable municipal average
Operating expenses 11,878,922 13,542,583 13,644,779 13,713,138 15,398,543
Taxable assessment 1,355,829,168 1,448,276,064 1,495,874,944 1,600,520,107 1,582,110,430
Operating expenses to taxable assessment 0.88% 0.94% 0.91% 0.86% 7%
Municipal average 0.98% 0.99% 0.96% 0.96%
Comparable municipal average 1.62% 1.55% 1.51% 1.48%
FLEXIBILITY INDICATORS
Public debt charges to revenues -
The "public debt charges-to-revenues" 008 )
indicator measures public debt charges as a 007
percentage of revenues, It illustrates the /\
extent to which past borrowing decisions 0.08 e :
present a constraint on a government's ability 0.05 ;
to meet its financial and service commitments 004 J ! _
in the current period. Specifically, the more
government uses revenues to meet the 003
interest costs on past borrowing, the less will 002 Y W —————
be available for program spending. 0.01 - T» B
0.00 !
= PINCHER CREEK NO. 9, M.D. OF === Municipal average Comparable municipal average

Debt servicing 558,189 715,359 711,631 707,925 704,218
Operating revenue 10,663,990 10,729,529 12,166,427 12,167,765 12,795,744
Public debt charges to revenues - 0.05 0.07 0.06 0.06 ~or
Municipal average 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
Comparable municipal average 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02

=,A\VCI i | cea



fv s s mAWEIE f SEm me swr P ERESS E S B B W N EANER W REmEmIR WSS

INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the year ended December 31, 2017

anen 2014 *~15 2016 2017
FLEXIBILITY INDICATORS, CONTINUED
Net book value to cost of tangible capital assets )
The "net book value of capital assets-to-cost 0.60
of capital assets" indicator is important . L
because it reports the extent to which the 0.50 — = =
estimated useful lives of a government's
tangible capital assets are available to provide 040
its products and services. If a government's 030
scale, scope and level of services remain
unchanged or grow, its asset base could 0.20
eventually impair flexibility because of the
impending future costs of capital asset repair o.10
or replacement. Further information regarding 0.00
assessing the physical condition of tangible ——PINCHER CREEK NO. 9, M.D. OF ——Municipal average - Comparable municipal average
capital assets can be found in ASSESSMENT OF
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS, SORP-3.
Net book value 50,390,205 52,055,092 55,183,001 53,850,494 53,510,762
Cost of tangible capital assets 191,720,389 196,240,455 201,952,248 202,696,549 205,606,570
Net book value to cost of tangible capital assets 0.26 0.27 0.27 0.27 0.26
Municipal average 0.47 0.47 0.47 0.47
Comparable municipal average 0.53 0.53 0.52 0.51
Own source revenues to taxable assessment -
The "own-source revenues-to-taxable ;'00% ‘ )
assessment” indicator is important because it 0.90%
shows the ratio of a local government's 0.80% |——
ownsource revenues to its tax base. A change 0.70%
in the size of a local government's taxable 0.60%
assessment or a change in the rate of growth 0.50%
in assessment in relation to changes in 0.40%
ownsource revenues could influence 0.30%
flexibility. 0.20%
0.10%
0.00%
= PINCHER CREEK NO. 9, M.D. OF e Municipal average - -~ Comparable municipal average
Own source revenues (net of government transfers) 10,574,581 10,640,520 12,166,427 12,006,709 12,633,425
Taxable assessment 1,355,829,168 1,448,276,064 1,495,874,944 1,600,520,107 1,582,110,430
Own source revenues to taxable assessment 0.78% 0.73% 0.81% 0.75% 0.80%
Municipal average 0.69% 0.75% 0.72% 0.71%
Comparable municihal average 0.79% 0.87% 0.79% 0.82%

Avail..



2013

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

2014

2015

INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
For the year ended December 31, 2017

anamy

2017

VULNERABILITY INDICATORS
Government transfers to total revenues
The purpose of reporting "government
transfers-to-total revenues" is to show the
proportion of revenues that provincial or local
governments receive from other
governments. This indicator offers a
perspective on the degree of vulnerability a
government faces as a result of its
dependence on another level of government
for revenues.

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

_—

===PINCHER CREEK NO. 9, M.D. OF

e Municipal average

Government transfers (including capital) 9,776,449 4,840,283 5,359,534
Total revenues (including capital) 20,351,430 15,480,803 17,525,961
Government transfers to total revenues 48% 31% ores
Municipal average 19% 16% 1470
Comparable municipal average 41% 33% 28%

+  Comparable municipal average

930,583 2,682,448
12,937,292 15,315,873
0/ 189%
1370 o
25%

=—7A\VCI I o



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2017








































































E3b

MD OF PINCHER CREEK
April 5, 2018
TO: Roland Milligan, Interim CAO
FROM: Janene Felker, Director of Finance

SUBJECT:  Mill Rate Bylaw 1284-18

1. Origin
The Municipal Government Act requires a bylaw be passed annually to set taxation rates for the year.
2. Background/Comment

Over the past month, Council has been deliberating on the 2018 municipal mill rates and how best to collect
the revenue that is required by the 2018 budget. In the 2018 budget, the total municipal taxation revenue that
is required for a balanced budget is $10,947,840.

The MD experienced a significant shift in assessment in 2018. This is in part due to a total review from the
MD’s assessor of Residential properties to ensure that the MD was in compliance with Provincial
regulations. In addition, there was a large drop in the Non-Residential categories due to depreciation and
provincial standardized rates. Overall, the assessment dropped 35,241,850 (2.18%) when compared to 2017
and created a funding deficit of $743,164.

The municipal mill rates that are presented to Council in the attached Mill Rate Bylaw see an increase of
4.5% for the Residential and Farmland assessment categories and 8.3% for the Non-Residential categories.

In addition, the mill rates associated with requisitions and levies are set in this bylaw. The requirements set
out in these requisitions and levies have been met. Also, the Bylaw reflects a few amended assessments that
have processed by both the Provincial and MD Assessors in the past week.

3. Recommendation

That the report from the Director of Finance, dated April 5, 2018, regarding the Mill Rate Bylaw 1284-17
be received,

And that Council gives Mill Rate Bylaw 1284-18 1% and 2" readings and be presented for 3™ reading.
Respectfully Submitted,

S widoloy

Janene F#lker, Director of Finance

Reviewed By: Roland Milligan, Interim CAO Date

Presented to L‘ouncTApnl 10,2018


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E3b








E3a


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E3a


Eda

From: Cao <cat ~ inchercreek.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, wiarch 27, 2018 3:09 PM

To: cao@crowsnestpass.com; Cindy Cornish; Roland Milligan
Subject: Regional meeting

Hi Patrick, Cindy and Roland,

The Town of Pincher Creek Council would like to arrange a Regional Council meeting to be held at the Pincher Creek
Town Council Chambers to discuss primarily the Environment and Protection and Enhancement Act Amendment
Application 009-18701, re: landfill incinerator proposal. If there are other items of mutual interest, please submit them
and they will be added to the agenda.

Although it is rather short notice, we are suggesting Thurs. April 19" at 6:30 p.m.. Please advise if your Council’s accept
the invitation and if the proposed date works for most. If not, an alternate date could be scheduled.
Thanks very much for your consideration.

Best Regards,

Laurie Wilgosh — CAO
Town of Pincher Creek


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E4a


E4b

MUNICIPAL DI . RIC . OF PINC CREEK

April 4, 2018

TO:

Reeve and Council

FROM: Roland Milligan, Interim Chief Administrative Officer

SUBJECT:  Governance Model Alternatives — Mr. George Cnff

1.0

2.0

3.0

Origin

George B. Cuff & Associates Ltd. were commissioned from the MD of Pincher Creek to
provide a Governance Audit of the organization.

Background

At the January 23, 2018 Council meeting, Council passed a resolution authorizing the
MD to obtain the services of Mr. George Cuff.

From February 20-22, 2018, Mr. Cuff and Associates were here interviewing members of
Council, Senior Management and other individuals.

The Governance Audit has been prepared, presented to Council and is now available to
the public.

Recommendation

That Council receive the MD of Pincher Creek: Governance Audit 2018, supplied by
George B Cuff & Associates, as information;

And that the comments and recommendations be utilized when making decisions for the
future of the MD of Pincher Creek No. 9, when applicable and practical.

Roland Milligan

Attachment;

MD of Pincher Creek: Governance Audit 2018


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E4b





MD of Pincher Creek: Governance Audit 2018
February 23 2018; Minor Edits March 22" 2018

Rarlaraiind
L

This firm was contacted by the CAO of the Municipal District on January 10t 2018 to
seek options on improving governance and the costs associated with those options. We

responded on January 11%" with three options and the MD Council replied on January

239 2018 advising that they had chosen to go with a Governance Audit.

We began work on this project the next day with a request for certain types of
background documentation. On the 25t of January we established dates wherein we
would be on site in Pincher Creek and on the 25t we sent out our survey of all members

of Council and senior management relative to their assessment of the issues and their

history.

We attended the office of Pincher Creek on February 20-22" 2018 to:

We sub: 1t

Conduct individual interviews with members of Council

Conduct individual interviews with  :mbers of the senior
administration

Conduct interviews with certain individuals associated with the
study but not a part of it

Provide Council and senior management with a seminar on “Good
Governance”

Prepare our summary of what we heard and what we believe the
Council and management need to do to improve the current
situation

Meet with Council in a closing session wherein we provided our
summary of what we heard and what steps we believe that this

Council needs to take in order to move forward.

itly briee 1 council _; well by a conference call (Febrt 'y ~3t* "718) ar

discussed the Report recc . nendations and ‘ated matters.

The Audit as we define it was described as follows:

A Governance Audit is simply a streamlined mechanism of ensuring a reasonably in-
depth understanding of your issues and a time-sensitive manner of providing Council

with a high level set of recommendations on how to improve/correct the system. The

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 2









3.0

Roles of t| Head of Council (Re

The Reeve is required to act as a Councillor in terms of the roles expected of them and

to be the chair of meetings unless otherwise delegated. We state the roles with

amplification as follows:

>

>
>
>

YV Vv

4.0

Chair meetings

Represent the interests of the MD; act as its official representative

Convey the will of Council to the public and beyond

Encourage good policies/practices; keep Council’s focus on the policy issues &
not personalities

Liaise with the CAO on a planned/regular basis

Model good behaviour in Chambers and out

Ensure Councillors refer their inquiries through the CAO; show respect for the
role and work of administration

Encourage fairness & civility

Model high integrity

What is Governance?

Governance is what a Council is elected to do; administration is what the management

and staff are appointed to do. We define “governance” as “The process of exercising

corporate leadership:

>

YV V V V

4.1

by the governing body
on behalf of its members (the citizens)
to the community & organization as a whole
in terms of purpose, control and future;
while providing oversight to ensure that the mandate of the municipality is
achieved”.
What Constitul i tl Gold Seal of Good Governance?

There are any number of scholars who have ¢ rised lists of characteristics of “good

governance”. While most of those pertain to the private sector, our belief is that some

if not all of these closely parallel what others have stated.

1.
2.

Clarity of mandate and authority

Effective orientation

TTIORCTBCUFF © ASS ™ 77 \T7v 77 °



Clear decision-making (governance) processes
Full disclosure by CAQO/administration to Council
Independence of the governing body

Primacy of the table

Intentional leadership on the key issues

Open to the public

© ® NS U oA W

Apolitical administration

10. Oversight to policy decisions

11.Stakeholder (citizen) values and concerns

12. Effective advocacy to other levels of government & to neighbours

13.0ngoing & effective fiduciary monitoring

14. Continual reporting on results; accountability

15. Succession planning

4.2 How is it Achieved?
Good governance is achieved when Council has access to quality information; has heard
from the public on those issues which might be described as major or significant (i.e.
policy matters); has spent some time considering the issue and its options; and has
thought through the consequences as they might impact the public. Some of these
decisions will impact: Council’s key priorities or may be more relevant to what
management has found difficult. As in other instances, the reporting has been
standardized in order to ensure consistency.

» Standardized reporting mechanism used by the administration

> Reports to Council are treated with respect by Councillors even where advice is

not accepted
> Council debates the policy options not the administration
» Council makes its decisions and management carries these out as effectively and
promptly as possible

5.0 Roles of the CAO
There are a number of both legislated roles (see Sec. 207 MGA) as well as what are
referred to as “generally accepted CAO roles”. The latter follows:

> Apolitical policy advice to Council

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 6



vV V. V V VYV V

“Hnduit  ~ 7 hHuncil decisions to administration
Implementer of Council decisions

Quarterback/team leader of the administrative body
Approval authority for administrative actions

Quality control of advice up & action down
Partnership builder; building alliances as appropriate
5.1 CAO Control Mechanisms

Because there has been concern relative to “how do we control our CAO given all of

the authority vested in that position?” we have developed a list of those elements which

we believe enable any Council to exercise appropriate control over their chief officer.

These follow:

>
>
>

YV V V

6.0

CAO Bylaw
CAO Position Description/ Profile
CAO Contract (Letter of Offer)
CAO Performance Appraisal
CAO Goals/Objectives
Organizational Performance.
Keys to Quality Council-CAO Relations
Respect for each other
» Evidenced in how we communicate; non-interference in work
responsibilities
Understanding of the legislation
» Council members’ roles are spelled out

» Powers of a CAO are clear

Respect for what brought Council and staff to the dance
Council members a tt t :au  of populism; CAO t :aut of
expertise

Council’s respect for the CAO
> Respect results in confidence in CAO to manage her administration
» CAO suffers when Councillors want to step in to “help”

The CAO’s respect for the role of Council

C77F77 7 CUFF & ASf ™ CIAT™) 7



» CAO needs to enable Council to lead; should not be doing the job of
Council nor shutting Council out of important issues/decisions
> Ongoing monitoring of the relationship
> Like marriages, these need to be monitored and watched for signs of
fraying.
6.1  Council’s Involvement in Management
Keys to making this work:
> ldentify the protocols at the outset; who do | speak to about what issues;
does that person ensure that the Councillor’s suggestions are passed along
to CAO
> Ensure that direct contact limited to CAO and direct reports; clarify what
is appropriate at direct report level
Refrain from direct supervision on site
Stay out of the weeds; expect advice

Treat/respect the staff as your key advisors

YV V V V

Understand the impact of your words; choose them carefully.
“A Council can do everything efficiently including its planning & handling of meetings,
policy development, public communication strategies, economic development plans,
etc. and still not receive community support. That comes from the heart and will be
expressed when people see how much you care for them”. (Cuff, 2017)
7.0  Our Summary
7.1 Some Good Things Have Been Done!

We realize that the following list may be only a representative sample of some of the
good things which have been accomplished over the past year or so (many of which
might be attributed to the former Council’s term of office). These are quoted from
information provided by the former CAO). W have listed the: | so as to " sonm
[ s ctive to what follows.

e Former Council adopted Strategic Plan (year ago)

e Former Council developed list of priorities

¢ Policies being set and reviewed by Council

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATESLTD 8



e Former Council created C; ~-Cour 'l covenant (adopted by the current
Council)
e CAO (past/present) tries hard to remain neutral on political issues
e Good briefing for prospective candidates
e ..orough orientation process
e ABCs dossiers created
e Procedural Bylaw reviewed
e Financial processes improving e.g. 3-year budget; Audit Committee
established
e Shared Services Review; steps being taken
e Regional Partnerships established
e Organizational changes: more cohesive culture; hiring standards
increased; adopted Engineering Standards; updated safety program; re-
obtained COR after having lost this over three years ago
e Wind energy
e Emergency Management Plan adopted
e FCSS plan in draft form
e Livestock Emergency plan in draft form
e Public Works renovations completed
e Increase in community engagements (Coffee with Council, barbeques,
breakfasts, Patton Park, Beaver Mines clean-up, etc.)
e Review of the Wind Energy Conversion System
e Land Use Bylaw.
7.2 Assessment of this Term: Council
We asked members of Council and management to describe what they felt was a
reasonable assessment of the 2017-21 term to date. What follows are a summarized
version of the descriptors utilized by Council:
e Most if not all recogn :dtt :abr ‘ing/orientation was i
e Term has been very difficult, troubled, exhausting, discouraging
e Significant trust issues have arisen between Councillors & between the senior

leadership

e Council unable to date to get past the issues and see the best in each other

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 9






Man: ment style and approach to issues well-regarded by some and not so by
others; some believe that there is too much focus on detail; employees not
feeling empowered or able to be proactive

Degree of communication of decisions and Council concerns very limi 1

Degree of respect/rapport between Council ©~ management appears to be low;
issues are not discussed openly or with candour

7.5 Significant Internal Issues: Management

General satisfaction that staff are doing their best yet some staff isolated from
the rest; difficult to maintain a positive work environment

Need to improve follow-through on response to issues

Management of office and PW need to be more cohesive

Multiple roles and inadequate staffing, particularly in the administration

Policy review has been left behind

Frequent looking back rather than forward; limited focus on need for policy; lack
of trust

Council may be placing too much emphasis on what they hear in tt  public;
management’s views also need to be considered

Councillors may not see need for attending external training courses.

7.6  Steps Taken to Address Issues (Council)

Council members asking questions

Council has contacted legal representation for clarification on certain issues
Council has engaged a Cuff Municipal Review

7.7 Addressing Issues: Management

Turmoil has limited opportunity to discuss what needs to be done; any long term
planning suffers

“Town Hall” meetii i have been held to some effect; committee meetings now
open to the public

~ternal consultants brought in to update Council

Council needs to be educated; identified training available

This review should identify the issues and what we need to do.

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATESLTD 11









* Most felt that little would change until immediately after the ection when
change (i.e. two new Councillors) was evident; decision to change the Reeve
position was noted as a significant change for Council

» The organizational meeting described as a turning point; Council appeared to
divide from that point forward

8.6 Resolve Major Issues

» Council indecision on several major issues adding to the angst in Chambers

» Some issues appear to be resolvable but delayed; such issues simply become
more aggravating over time

* Management needs to bring forward a report on how to conclude projects and
issues; place in hands of this Council

8.7 Orientation Processes

» Approach to Council orientation needs to be improved

* Focus of the orientation should have been on what Council was elected to do:
govern

* Decision to invite Brownlee LLP for a legal overview was a good one

8.8 Strategic Planning

* There is a desire for long term vision and direction; as a leadership body, Council
expected to set out its priorities

* No strategic planning process either recommended or adopted; lack of policy
driven priorities

+ Council lacks any focus on what it hopes to accomplish over the next four years

» Need for Council and management to discuss what results will be in 4 years; need
to determine year one priorities

8.9 Protocols

* Need clarity re: what is discussed in camera

* Implement request for decision (f. ., foi it

* Improve Council decorum

8.10 Advice to Council

» Council agenda packages need to be improved; focus needs to be “what does

Council need to make a quality decision?”

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES " TD 14












MGA (Municipal Government Act), we believe that the CAO should be directed to review
what we have attached and edit it as necessary to suit your local circumstances.
(Recommendation #10)

Given the difficulties encountered by the MD relative to its communication of the issues
regarding the MD’s role and responsibilities related to the KeNow fire, and the questions
posed by Council as to who has the authority to communicate what and when, we
believe that the MD should be developing a “communications plan” and rela ]
strategies and policies. External consulting assistance might be required.
(Recommendation #11)

There are major issues in the life of any Council which need to be addressed in a
proactive and yet careful manner. We see considerable value in the MD developing a
“major issues dossier” which highlights the current significant challenges facing the
MD and the response which Council (and management) feels is warranted. Such a
dossier, which would be the responsibility of the CAO to keep updated, would keep the
focus of Council on the bigger issues of the day. (Recommendation #12)

There are a number of conduct-related issues which were mentioned in the course of
our work for the MD. These plus the new requirement that municipalities now have to
develop a “code of conduct” makes this recommendation perhaps redundant.
Nonetheless we believe that Council needs to act on it and approve a code of conduct
for itself and require the CAO to develop a similar code for members of the
administration. (Recommendation #13)

Our review of the background information sent to us prior to our arrival on site revealed
that there were a number of concerns relative to your current Procedure Bylaw. As a
result, we believe it to be timely to review the bylaw and determine how the language
ought to be modified and updated. For example, any reference to the agenda of Council
ought to be made as a part of an “agenda policy” to enable ongoing revisions without
the necessity of changing the bylaw. (Recommendation #14)

As we discussed with Council, it was/is our view that your management needs the
necessary tools to get their jobs done appropriately. Thus, it is our opinion that any
attempt at evaluating their performance would not be fair or sufficiently

comprehensive without their full understanding of what constitutes effective

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 18



“management practices”. We have cited some of those that we feel would make a
difference to the management of the organization and recc mend that the CAO
implement these. (Recommendation #15)
Our final recommendation is a very important one but one which we did not place
suitable emphasis on because of the mo urgent matters under discussion. We
understand that Council, in terms of its governance model, has utilized a committee
of tt whole standing committee “Council Committee” which meets between meetings
of Council. We were not made aware of any terms of reference for this committee but
believe that it could be an effective opportunity for members of Council to meet and
reflect on the more significant issues of the day. We see this becoming more valuable
over time through enhanced focus on its mandate and the regular use of it to discuss
matters of some consequence. We have appended a terms of re ‘ence for what we
have termed a “Governance & Priorities Committee” (GPC) (Recommendation @16)
10.0 Recommendations
We recommend that:
1. Action be taken on the consultant’s advice and confidential report re: personnel
matters.
2. We recommend that all Council members agree to focus on the issues & not
individual personalities and thereby function as a mature governing body.
3. Steps be taken by Council to develop its strategic priorities at least for this year;
a full term list also needed.
4. Council seek further guidance on its roles and the limitations of its power; and
that the role statements as recommended be approved.
5. A “Request for Decision” format (as provided by Cuff & Associates Ltd.) be
adopted and utilized
6. Action be tal 1~ "» ‘op policies on major and repetitive matters with a
pr ity fc 1s on financial policies (we will provide a policy template and a
sample policy).
7. Protocols be developed on internal policy matters; these to be circulated to all

members of the administration.

C 7 IRGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 19



8. A performance assessment template be developed and implemented for the
position of CAO; and for all management personnel. Once these are set in place
and training received, such a system be implemented across the organization.

9. We recommend that position descriptions be developed for all current/proposed
positions; that no position be advertised until this has been completed.

10. We recommend that the current orientation process be reviewed and revised (we
will provide a template).

11.We recommend that communication plan and protocols be developed.

12.We recommend that major issues be reviewed and revised (we will provide a
template).

13. We recommend that a Council and Administrative Code of Conduct be
developed.

14.We recommend that the Procedure Bylaw be reviewed and where necessary
updated.

15. We recommend that the management practices as identified be implemented.

16.Council adopt a Governance & Priorities model of governance; that the

foundational terms of reference and guiding principles be approved.

Closing Comment
We have appreciated the invitation to provide advice to Council and management. We
trust that the recommendations together with the content of the two

seminar/workshop sessions will prove to be valuable.

__=FF

George B Cuff, FCMC

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 20



Appendices

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 21



Request for Decision (RFD)

Meeting:
Meeting Date:
RFD Originated By:

Topic/lssue:

A) The Proposal:

What is the essence of what is being proposed? Why is this important for the senior
management team (SMT) to review; for the CAQ to agree; for the Council to approve?
What would justify this being beyond the authority of the CAO to respond?

B) Governance Implications:

What are the policy consequences or impacts of this decision? What new policy is being
recommended? What current policy is being set aside if we go in this direction?

C) Background To The Proposal:

What are the key preceding events? Has Council seen the issue previously? What gives
rise to this being placed before Council?

D) Discussion / Options / Benefits / Disadvartages:

What e the key options in terms of action? The County can stay with the status quo
(option a) which is...? The County can proceed with option b, ¢, d..which are and which
result

The advantages and disadvantages from the perspective of senior management are???

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 22



E) Cnsts / Source Of Fundine (If Applicable):

Y Impact on Citizens, Local Businr=sses

G) Impact On Staff RPesources:

H) Impact On Approved Business Plan:

1) Recom™ended Action:
That the Council accepts the proposal of the CAO/senior management team (SMT).

This proposed course of action has been identified as Option XXX which succinctly
stated is as follows:

J)  Additional Background Information:

There is a file of background information which Council members have access to relative
to this report. The executive summary of that information is attached hereto.
Additional information can be accessed by following this link:

K) ADDED COMMENT< BY CAQ (as applicable):

Intials show support - Initiator:
Approv 1by: wt
CAO:
Date:

Sample Policy Issues for a Council

C7IRGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 23



We see the following as matters on which Council should t expected to provide policy

leadership to:

>
>

YV V V VYV V V

Y

YV V.V V V VYV V V VY

A statement of the Council’s vision and values

A statement of Council priorities based on its sense of the welfare of the citizens

as a whole

The development and evaluation of the policies and programs of the municipality

The corporate Business Plan

The need for and timing of any new Council orientation

The Council’s own performance assessment

The recruitment process and selection of the CAO

The contract, agreement and bylaw of appointment for the chief administrative

officer

The manner, mechanism and timing of a performance review of the Chief

Administrative Officer

The compensation authorized for the CAO

Approval of the organization structure and any changes thereto

Approval of any new positions recommended

Approval of the annual or multi-year budgets

Approval of variances to budget

Approval of capital projects and any recommended changes thereto

Approval of funding to cc... nunity groups

Approval of bylaws and plans as required by the legislation

Approval of any matter imposed on Council by the legislation, by bylaws or other
1actments not delegated to the CAO by bylaw and/or not ott  wi: authori: 1

within any current policy or bylaw.

These are not the only issues that ought to be the subject of policy but will certainly
provide a good base on which to build.

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 24



MD of Pincher Creek
CAO Recruitment Policy
The Issue
The well-being of MD of Pincher Creek rests upon the capacity that it has to govern
effectively and to deliver effective, efficient and desired services. This capacity relies
upon, in some measure, the ability of the MD to ensure that it has identified and
recruited a quality administrative leader to provide guidance and direction to the
administrative organization in a manner which reflects the decisions and philosophy of
the Council.
It is incumbent upon this and every Council to have a policy and plan in place so that
whenever a vacancy does arise in this extremely important role, that a strategy is in
place to fill the position temporarily (a succession plan) and on a peMDanent basis (a
succession/recruitment plan). As such the issues identified herein speak to the need of
Council to provide policy leadership in this regard and to put in place a recruitment
plan that will enable Council to act in a professional and expeditious manner whenever
a vacancy in the position of CAO does occur.
Council is committed to taking whatever steps are deemed necessary to ensure that
this organization always benefits from the capable leadership that ought to be afforded
by a competent, experienced and responsive chief administrative officer.
Mission & Vision
XXXX
Vision
XXXX
Core Values
o XXXX
» B
a Servicing the needs of the people through local municipal services
o making and enforcing laws
a being responsible stewards of taxpayers' money

a providing long-term viability for our MD

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSC™7AT™ "~ 77 7



o facilitating public input

o fulfilling the requirements of provincial legislation
Definition
Recruitment pertains to the search and selection process utilized in locating an
individual for a vacant position in the organization. It combines a series of approaches
that work in a linked fashion such that potentially qualified and interested candidates
are identified, reviewed, interviewed, referenced checked and assessed by the
recruitment firm/agent prior to being placed before Council as potential candidates for
the position of chief administrative officer.
Recruitment also refers to the process whereby Council interviews all short-listed
candidates and determines which one is likely to best meet the needs of the community
and organization for the foreseeable future. It includes the offer made to the successful
candidate and an employment agreement being entered to with that person.
Related Strategic Goals

XXXX

Related Organizational Goals
a Toensure that the comprehensive human resource needs of the organization are
consistently being identified and addressed
a To update the human resource needs on a regular basis
o To identify internal candidates for possible promotion into more senior level
positions
a To ensure that the organization consistently identifies training opportunities
that enhance our ability to develop such candidates
MD of Pincher Creek Council Policy
The Council of the MD of Pincher Creek believes in the importance of its employees to
the welfare of its citizens. Council understands that our employees are essential to
enabling our citizens to enjoy this MD and its many benefits, including all of the services
rendered by the MD. Council’s values include: effective leadership and long term
planning. These both speak to the need to ensure that we are properly administered

and guided and that our services are effectively and efficiently rendered. Our core

“TTF T T CUFF TTTTTT 26



busit 5 i ( :above) also speak to the im} ‘tance that we place on quality people
providing first rate service.
The Council respects the authority it has vested in its Chief Administrative Officer (CAO)
and thus realizes that Council guides the organization through the CAO. As a result,
Council is responsible for ensuring that it has a plan in place to ensure an orderly
transition from one CAO to another whenever that needs arises. Our Succession Plan is
based on our desire that the organization continue to function in a responsive manner
despite any changes in our administrative leadership and particularly durir a transition
period, when we are in the process of recruiting a new CAO. Council’s Succession Policy
is that it will ensure that an interim CAQ is appointed in the absence of our CAO and
that our succession plan is followed; that Council is afforded the time and resources
necessary to ensure that the best candidate for any vacancy CAO position is identified;
and that the future needs and aspirations of the MD as Council understands these to be
will be a part of any decision as to a replacement for the outgoing CAO.
Council’s Recruitment Policy is as follows: “The MD of Pincher Creek Council
will always ensure that if affords both the MD and the organization the best
possible administrative leadership possible by recruiting to this position
someone who has the experience, talent, competencies and style necessary
to handle the position responsibilities in a professional, competent fashion.
The MD will consider both internal and external candidates as its focus is
not on promoting the best but finding the best. Such a person may or may
not be currently working for the organization.
As the Recruitment Plan indicates, Council will always consider using the
resources of an experienced search consultant in locating quality
candidates. As a Council we will do our best with or without the help of an
external recruitment agent to find that person who best meets the identified
needs of the community on a “go forward” basis”.
Linkage to Other Council Documents
This Recruitment Policy is but one of a series of inter-linked policies and strategies that

will ensure that MD of Pincher Creek continues to be recognized as an “employer of

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 27



choic . This Policy is also directly linked to Council’s succession policy (see Policy

#xxxx), succession plan and recruitment plan for the position of CAO.

Protocols

Statements of Protocol
1.0 Relationship to CAO & Management

1.1Council members will treat the CAO and his staff with respect in all Council
and committee meetings.
1.2The CAO will be advised by his direct reports of any requests for information
to his administration by Council members.
1.3Any access to the administration by members of the Council will be limited
to the CAO and/or his direct reports.
2.0 Relationship to CAO & Management
2.1Council members agree to respect the apolitical nature of the office of the
CAO and to receive his advice as being in the perceived best interests of the
County and/or organization.
2.2Council members will respectfully listen to comments in response to
questions posed at Council meetings and will ensure that the CAO is accorded
a respectful audience.
3.0 Treatment of the senior administration
3.1Council members agree to respect the apolitical nature of senior staff and will
treat their advice and reports with respect. Council agrees that it will not
knowingly or willfully interfere with their work but will coordinate any of its
concerns as a Council through the office of the CAO.
4.0 Advice to the Council
4.1All  »Horts to tt Council will inclu¢ a  :ommendation by the relevant
department head and will be counter-signed by the CAO; any report to Council
will not be considered by Council unless and until it bears the signature of the
CAO.
4.2Management through the CAO will endeavour to keep the Council informed on

the salient background of all key issues facing the County.

GEORGE B CUFF -~ ASSOCIATES LTD 28



4.3Issues for which man: :ment does not have clear policy 1iidance will ' @
prioritized for policy development and presented to Council by the CAO.
5.0 Primacy of Policy
5.1Current approved policies will always be followed until changes have been
formally approved by Council.
5.2Any communication of the policies of the County to external audiences will be
referred to the CAO or the Reeve (as appropriate). In most instances, the Reeve
will communicate such policies to external audiences.
5.3The Council may at any time request a review of current policy
6.0 Requests for Information
6.1Responses to such requests for information from the administration will be
copied to all members of Council and to the CAO.
6.21In response to any questions by Councillors to the CAO (and Department Heads)
at a Council meeting, it is understood that management is not expected to know
the answers to all questions; but expected to review and report back to the
Council at the first opportunity.
7.0 Responsibility of CAO
7.1Any blame for the mistakes by administration will be accepted by the CAO and/or
Council as appropriate in those circumstances. It will be understood by Council
that the CAO will be immediately seeking to correct any such failings.
8.0 Public Profile
8.1Disparaging remarks with regard to the Council or administration will not be
tolerated at any meeting of the Council or anywhere on public premises
8.2 Any contact between the Council & administration that appears to be other than
respectful will be reported to the Reeve and CAO for follow-up as deemed
appropriate.
8.3All Council and staff members will be conscious of the need for confidentiality
in any e-mail exchanges. All correspondence will be recognized as ultimately
public.
8.4All Council and staff members will be aware of the need to show respect to the

public while not tolerating any abuse.

TN TE T TJFF T T



9.0 Diversity of Views

9.1We accept and celebrate the diversity of our members. We expect varying points

of view on most issues.

9.2We listen carefully to each other because of our mutual respect. Our arguments

are focused on the issue, not on the person.

9.3We accept the authority of the Reeve to guide all Council meeting(s).

10.0 Appreciation of Democracy

10.1

10.2

We value and accept decisions made by our Council; we recognize that
not all members may be in agreement with a specific decision.

Subject to the provisions of the Procedural Bylaw, we agree not to

resurrect issues that have already been decided by resolution or policy of this

Council for a period of at least 6 months.

10.3

We understand that our committees are advisory to the full Council & do

not make decisions on their own unless delegated that authority

11.0 Use of public property

11.1

We agree to respect the fact that property belonging to the County is held
as a common interest for the good of all citizens. As a result, we will not
presume that any such property belongs solely to members of Council or
that we can as members of Council take advantage of our access to such

property as a result of being on Council.

12.0 Treatment of ABCs

12.1

12.2

Council is appreciative of the willingness of citizens to volunteer their
time and talents to serve on various local organizations (referred to as
ABCs—agencies, boards and committees). These agencies, when
established by Council, are considered as a part of Council’s decision-
makii  process and thus will have matters referred to them for their
advice.

The ABCs will in turn advise Council of their recommendation on matters

that they have considered. Council may or may not accept the advice of any

ABC on matters within their terms of reference.

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIATES LTD 30



13.0 Respect in Chambers
13.1 Council members will treat each other with respect in Council Chambers.
During the course of meetings, proper titles will be used such that
Councillors will refer to the Reeve as “Your Worship” or “Mr. Reeve”; and
to each other as “Councillor Smith” (i.e. whatever the appropriate last
name is).
13.2 When another member of Council is speaking, respect will be shown by
the other members of Council who will not interrupt the member speaking.
14.0 Obligation to Inform
14.1 Council members respect the fact that they represent the citizens as a
whole and not groups/sectors of citizens. As a result, the messages of
Council will be communicated through official channels to all of the public
following a meeting & will not be sent in advance to
groups/organizations/friends of Council members.

14.2 Any request to staff for information by a member of Council will be
responded to according to the County’s policies. In every instance where
information is being sent to one member of Council, that same information will
be sent concurrently to all.

14.3 The Reeve by virtue of his office may be advised on matters before the
rest of Council. Subject to whatever constraints are placed on the information
by whoever initiated the contact with the Reeve, the information will be
circulated to all members of Council concurrently and as soon as practical,

preferably within 48 hours of the Reeve receiving the information.

“EORGE B CUFF & ASSC "TAT™% |



Performance Appraisal

of the Chief Administrative Officer
for the
MD of Pincher Creek

Name of CAO:
Date Appointed to Position:

Date of Appraisal Meeting:

Current Salary:

Date of Last Revision:

Purpose of a Performance Evaluation Process

This performance evaluation of the CAO is a valued instrument of this Council and is

used in order to:

Underline the importance which the Council places on its relationship to CAO

Ensure that both the Council and CAO understand essential components &

competencies of this position

Provide a balanced format that is deemed acceptable and useful to both parties

and one that serves the purpose of outlining requirements and ensuring sound and

regular feedback

Provide the CAO with a forum for outlining and discussing his annual objectives and

an assessment of the results

Establish any needed changes in the criteria for future evaluations.

Performance tvaltuation Content

A review of the CAO’s performance should embrace a number of areas. These include

the following:
Assistance to Council in understanding its governance role

Relationship building with the Reeve

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOC™ T~ 777 32









f

9)
h)

d)

. Policy advice & leadership on the key issues

Assistance in identifying key issues; offering strategic advice addressing such

issues

Ensuring both Council and administration aware of importance of policy

development

Providing quality advice and guidance to Council on identified issues

Coordination and preparation of draft policy statements

Strength of administrative leadership as observed in terms of the CAO’s

decision-making ability (e.g. decisiveness, quality of decisions)

Advice to Council on importance of strategic planning as a leadership tool;

assistance to Council in planning/designing a strategic planning session

Implementing approved policy; monitoring policy implications

Review/monitoring of financial controls/audit reports/business plan and budget
Rating:

Comments:

Fiscal management
Ensuring the development of a comprehensive, inclusive and transparent
process of business planning and budgeting
Ensuring that Council provides guidance to the administration in the
development of both plans and budgets
Providing Council with accurate, comprehensive advice on the current status
of the fiscal condition of the MD
Advising Council on the status of any changes required by the external
auditor; acting promptly on audit recommendations

Rating:

Comments:

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIAT™Y ™7™ 35



5. Leadership of the administrative team
a) Providing ongoing, consistent leadership to department heads and through them
to the full administration
b) Communicating effectively and regularly; providing ongoing guidance/direction
¢) Making administrative decisions within constraints of bylaw/policies
d) Providing inspiration and modeling of a desire to be the best
e) Delegating/empowering within reasonable limits
f) Supervising direct reports and expecting results
g) Disciplining behavior and correcting promptly
h) Ensuring sound corporate communications plan
i) Ensuring that senior staff are involved in the process of developing MD goals and
priorities; providing a forum for Council and senior staff to engage in discussions
relative to the MD’s strategic plan

Rating:

Comments:

6. Discharge of all legislative and bylaw requirements
a) Determining changes to the organizational structure
b) Continually assessing the needs of the system; seeking the advice of senior
staff in this process
¢) Developing a sound policy-based and cross-organizational approach to
recruitment & selection
d) Ensuring a planned approach to training/development

e) Attending suitable conferences/courses as an example

TTTRCTBCUFF & ASS ™77 T T T )



f) Ttablishing mechanisms for mentoring other supervisory staff
¢) Fulfilling all Act and bylaw requirements
Rating:

Comments:

7. Development of community relationships

a) Maintaining a positive profile in the MD of Pincher Creeks jurisdiction as the
senior administrative spokesperson and leader

b) Ensuring that Council members and the Reeve have access to sound advice
on how to engage the public (community communication plan)

¢) Maintaining contact with other administrative leaders in the region and with
other key administrative leaders throughout the Province

d) Developing a positive/constructive rapport with media

e) Ensuring the development of administrative protocol to develop courteous
relationships with the public

Rating:

Comments:

Annual Objectives/Key Results

These should be developed by the CAO and reviewed with the Reeve and Council.

Key Objectives Key Results

GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOC™"T—7 7



GEORGE B CUFF & ASSOCIAT™3 ™ TD 38






Follow-Up
Indicate those measures or steps which should be taken by the CAO over the course of

the next appraisal period to improve his/her performance, e.g. types of external or

internal development courses/seminars, changes in management practices, etc.

Sign Off

Signatures of the Reeve and CAO to indicate completion of the process

Signature of the CAO

Signature of Reeve (or designate)
Date

George B. Cuff, FCMC

C7IRC™ B CUFF & ASSOCIAT™T ™ TD 40



E4c


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E4c








Administration Call Log

A

d To

Action Taken

ision

Location

Concern / Request

Req Date

Completion Date

76

NW 13-05-01-W5

Inquiring regarding permits for outdoor storage.

Roland

In discussions. Letter being sent to property owner.
Registered letter was sent to the landowner.
Received a letter from the landowner on February 14,
2017 with some enquiries.

In the process of responding to the landowner’s
enquiries.

September 7, 2017 Landowner has contacted the
office to inform us that he is actively removing debri
and will continue to clean the site further.

Had a meeting with the landowner regarding the
storage issue.

Landowner has agreed to start clean-up on the site.
A plan to monitor and confirm clean-up is being
prepared.

November 17, 2016

79

2

1w 35-05-30-W5

Industrial use of building. Blowing Materials

Roland

An email was sent to the President of the company
that is utilizing the building, enquiring as to the
current use.

May 19, 2017

83

84

85




F2a


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
F2a


F2b

. RECEIV D
MAR 27 761
FaG M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK
ALBERTA
MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS

Office of the Minister
MIA, Leduc-Beaumont

AR92740

March 19, 2018

His Worship Don Anderberg
Mayor

own of Pincher Creek

PO Box 159

Pincher Creek AB TOK 1WO0

Dear Mayor Anderberg,

Through the Alberta Community Partnership (ACP) program, the Government of Alberta
encourages strengthened relationships between municipalities and co-operative
approaches to service delivery. By working in partnership with our neighbors, we help to
build vibrant, resilient communities for the benefit of all Albertans.

| am pleased to inform you that the Town of Pincher Creek has been approved for a
grant of $115,000 under the Intermunicipal Collaboration component in support of your
Intermunicipal Collaboration Framework project.

The conditional grant agreement will be sent shortly to your Chief Administrative Officer
to obtain the appropriate signatures.

The provincial government looks forward to celebrating your ACP-funded project with
you and your municipal partnership. | encourage you to send invitations for these
milestone events to my office. If you would like to discuss possible events and activities
to recognize your ACP achievements, please contact Municipal Affairs
Communications, toll-free at 310-0000, then 780-427-8862, or at
acp.grants@gov.ab.ca.

../2

132 [ 10800 - 97 Avenue, Edmonton, Alberta TSK 2B6 Canada  Telephone 780-427-3744 4 0

Printed on recvled paper


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
F2b


F  WNc ip Don Ani g

-0

| congratulate the partne ip on initiating this project, and | wish you e\ y success in
your efforts.

Sincerely,

%AIUK Aé/uku Lwmn

Hon. Shaye Anderson
Minister of Municipal Affairs

cc
'Creek
ot of Pincher _.eek









F2c


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
F2c


. .2eve and Council

-2-

are myenthus n -tt prog n,andltl 1k you in advance

Qinrarals

n
~















F2d

RECEIVED

apD ~ | 701
ALDEKI1A Y R L 751

MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS \.D. OF PINCHER CREEK

Ulfrce of the Minister

MILA, Leduc-Beaumont ARG3219

March 29, 2018

Reeve Quentin Stevick

Municipal District of Pincher Creek
PO Box 279

Pincher Creek AB TOK 1WO0

Dear Reeve Stevick,

Our government is committed to supporting municipalities in providing quality infrastructure and
services to Albertans. As part of that commitment, | am pleased to confirm that $800 million has been
made available to Alberta’s municipalities through a 2017-18 Supplementary Estimate.

Your additional 2017 Municipal Sustainability Initiative (MSI) Capital funding is $949,485. March 2018
allocations for all municipalities are also posted on the Municipal Affairs MSI website at
www.municipalaffairs.albr~+~ ca/msi. Details on the allocations, as well as the application process and
payment requirements for these funds, are available on the MSI webpage in the Addendum to 2017 MS/
Capital Program Guidelines. While this funding is intended to provide Alberta’s municipalities with
additional flexibility to plan for the future, it does not constitute an overall increase to anticipated MSI
funding.

The government understands how important it is to ensure that municipalities are able to fund the
infrastructure that Albertans use every day, now and into the future. I look forward to continuing our
cooperative efforts to build strong and thriving communities for Albertans.

Sincerely,

Hon. Shaye Anderson
Minister of Municipal Affairs

cc: Roland Milligan, Chief Administrative Officer, Municipal District of Pincher Creek

1321 slature Building, 10800 - 97 Avenue, Edmonton, Alberta TSK 2B6 Canada  Telep 2 780-427-3744 Fax 780-422-9550

Printed on recycled paper


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
F2d


F2e

Workers’
Compensation
Corporate Communications Board - Alberta
P - Tel:  780-498-8680 9925 107 Street
Fax: 780-498-7875 PO Box 2415
Website: web.ab.ca Edmonton AB T5J 2S5

RECEIVED
MAR 27 7078
M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK

March 21, 2018

Dear Mayors, Reeves and Councillors:

RE: April 28 — National Day of Mourning

On April 28, we all come together to remember the workers who were killed, injured or disabled at work.
In 2017, we lost 166 men and women to workplace injury or illness in Alberta.

To remember them, we have developed a memorial poster (enclosed) in recognition of the day. This
poster will appear at workplaces, public places and in ceremonies across the province as a remembrance
and a tribute to the workers killed or injured on the job, and a reminder that we need to work together to

make workplaces safer.

We have also included a small vinyl sticker to provide a tangible reminder of the significance of April 28. If
you are interested in distributing them to visitors, we would be happy to provide you with a supply.

We ask that you display the poster and use it in any events marking Day of Mourning.

If you have any questions, need stickers or additional posters, please contact Dina DaSilva, WCB
Corporate Communications at 780-498-8616 o

We will be lowering our flags to half-mast on April 28. We invite you to join us in marking this important
day by doing the same.

Sincerely,

D

Dayna Therien
Director of Corporate Communications
WCB-Alberta

Encl.


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
F2e


F2f


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
F2f


Page |2

2. The map included in your newsletter shows a huge area where the transmission line might be
located. We believe that if a transmission line is approved, then it should stay within existing
transportation and utility corridors as was previously directed in the South Saskatchewan
Regional Plan. As well, a conclusion was reached in the last routing exercise, by Altalink, that
starting from Castle Rock and staying on or near developed areas was the most preferable. We
are unsure why such a large swath is depicted.

3. Given the current circumstances with our relationship with BC and the decision to suspend any
discussions on a link from BC’s Site C and Alberta, we do not see why restoring the Alberta = BC
Intertie at this time is a priority. As well, until any new generation in the area is approved, it
cannot be determined whether a need for additional capacity is required.

These concerns are based on the very limited information provided in your newsletter and we request a
meeting with you and your staff to gain a fuller understanding of the plans for this project. We look
forward to hearing back from you with possible dates to meet.

On behalf of the LLG members and Board of Directors,

W T"[_H_Jl

Bill Trafford, President
Livingstone Landowners’ Group

cc: Hon. Margaret McCuaig-Boyd, Minister of Energy
Hon. Shannon Phillips, Minister of Environment and Parks
Mr. Pat Stier (UCP), MLA Livingstone-Macleod
Alberta Utilities Commission
MD of Pincher Creek



Tuesday, March 27, 2018

Mr. Bill Trafford

President

Livingstone Landowners’ Group
PO Box 148

Cowley, Alberta TOK OPO
info@livingstonelandowners.net

Dear Mr. Trafford

Re: Chapel Rock-to-Pincher Creek Transmission Development

Thank you for your letter dated March 24, 2018 expressing your concerns with the Chapel Rock-to-
Pincher Creek Transmission Development; we appreciate you taking the time to continue the
conversation with the Alberta Electric System Operator (AESO) and AltaLink Management Ltd.

We value the opportunity to meet with the Livingstone Landowners’ Group to discuss your concerns
directly. | invite you to call Brandy Eagleson directly at 403-233-6406 or email her directly at
brandy.eagleson@aeso.ca to arrange a time that is convenient. You have clearly expressed this is a busy
season for ranchers and we look forward to working with you to find a time and location that will work for
you and your members.

The need for this development was identified in the AESO’s Southern Alberta Transmission
Reinforcement Needs Identification Document application, which was approved by the Alberta Utilities
Commission in 2009. As part of the AESQ'’s transmission planning process, and consistent with our duty
to provide market participants with access to the transmission system, we continually monitor economics,
government policies and electricity market participant’'s connection requests to assess impacts on existing
transmission plans.

As a result of our ongoing planning process, we have determined the need to reinforce the transmission
system in this area remains. We have also identified another potential termination point for the
transmission line from the planned Chapel Rock substation. There may also be an opportunity to stage
the planned development to incrementally add transmission capacity as needed. Therefore, the previous
transmission routes and sites considered by AltaLink may need to be re-considered. This is why the map
included in our newsletter shows the general area where these transmission facilities may be located. As
part of AltaLink’s continued consultation with stakeholders, more defined areas of consideration for the
routing and siting of transmission facilities will be identified.

In response to your inquiry on the need for restoring the Alberta-B.C. intertie at this time, Alberta’s
electricity system is in a state of transition as the province moves towards phasing out coal-fired
generation and integrating more renewable generation. Restoring the Alberta-B.C. intertie provides
beneficial flexibility to import electricity when additional supply is needed, and to export it to the Western

Page 1 Public
Alberta Electric System Operator, Calgary Place, 2500, 330 - 5th Avenue SW Calgary, AB T2P 0L4
Phone: 403-539-2450 Fax: 403-539-2948 www.aeso.ca ¥ @theaeso



d

Interconnection when Alberta is producing more electricity than demanded. This flexibitity will contribute
to the efficient provision of a continued reliable supply of electricity for Albertans.

Finally, we are pleased to hear you will join AltaLink’s community workshops planned for April 10 and 11,
2018. We will also be in attendance to offer participants information about the continued need for this
development, the opportunity to restore the Alberta-B.C intertie and the exploration of a different
termination point for the approved development.

| would like to thank LLG for your continued patience and participation in this process as we work to move
this piece of essential infrastructure forward to serve the need for Albertans.

Yours truly,

Original signed by

Jerry Mossing
Vice President, Transmission

cc: Hon. Margaret McCuaig-Boyd, Minister of Energy
Hon. Shannon Phillips, Minister of Environment and Parks
Mr. Pat Stier (UCP), MLA Livingstone-Macleod
Alberta Utilities Commission

MD of Pincher Creek

Page 2 Public



F2g


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
F2g


Thisisnolon¢ acampaign,i iould now be a department of the government with funding

to continue prevention

This is no longer a provincial problem, it is a federal problem, lakes that are contaminatt

in Canada should not be allowed to let boats leave without inspection to prevent

contaminating other lakes.

Transport Canada should now prevent float planes from hoping provinces and states

Education — Major Media campaign announcing commitment to keep our waters pristine.

TV, Billboards, News paper, social media

All Municipalities and Regional Districts should run a banner on their website home pages
- "f'--~q is T~~mitted to kee~~q their lake~ QAuagg~ ~~} 7~~~ Mussel fr~~ Please

respect our Laxes and boarder crossing patrols, > TOP at ine boart inspection stayons”. This

should have a link to a website explaining the seriousness of this issue, and explain fines
for breaking the law by transporting invasive species.

All tourism sites should also announce and run the banner on their sites. Tourism will stay
healthy if the lakes stays healthy.

Boaters registration, should include education

Immediate allocations of funds dedicated to research, to enable biologists to work on a
solution with Manitoba & US studies research groups. Let's work on removing them,
together.

Collaborate with infested US bordering Lakes on research and prevention of cross
contamination.

Collaborate with British Columbia and Saskatchewan to stay mussel free.

Funding:

Alberta government will find the funds (billions) if we lose the battle against mussels, as we'll need
to manage the problem. This is how we can help fund the prevention now (millions):

Out of province user pay at all boat ramps

Lake passes for boaters

All fines are allocated back to the program

Boat registration increase some funding back to project

Thank you for your consideration of this issue.

Yours truly,

im Benedict, Mayor

Cc:

Hon. Catherine McKenna — Minister of Environment and Climate Change
Hon. Oneil Carlier, MLA Whitecourt-Ste. Anne

Al Kemmere, AAMDC President

AAMDC Members

AUMA President

Alberta Beach Council



Gla

Meeting Minutes
of the
Agricultural Service Board — Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9
March 1, 2018 — MD Council Chambers

Present: Chair John Lawson, Vice Chair Martin Puch, Councillor Bev Everts,
Reeve Quentin Stevick, Member Frank Welsch

Also Present: Director of Operations Leo Reedyk, Agricultural Services Manager
Shane Poulsen Environmental Services Technician Lindsey Davidson
and Receptionist Jessica McClelland

Absent: Member David Robbins

Chair John Lawson, called the meeting to order at 9:42 am.

A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Frank Welsch 18/010

Moved that the agenda be approved as presented.
Carried

B. DELEGATION

Jeff Bectell and Tony Bruder with the Waterton Biosphere Reserve Association attended the
meeting at this time to update the Agricultural Service Board on the current deadstock program,
agricultural plastics recycling, plans for upcoming sessions to involve landowners in concerns
regarding deadstock bins and a general overview of the Waterton Biosphere Association.

Jeff and Tony left the meeting at this time, the time being 11:02 am.

C. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

Frank Welsch 18/011
Moved that the minutes of January 11, 2018 be accepted as presented.

Carried

ASB Key Contact Bradly Smith was unable to attend the meeting today.


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
G1a


Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes
March 1, 118
Page 2

E1. FOOTHILLS FORAGE AND GRAZING ASSOCIATION SPONSORSHIP

Reeve Stevick 18/012

Moved that Agricultural Service Board agree to sponsor the Foothills Forage and Grazing
Association to a maximum amount of $3000 with the stipulation that $1000 be used for the core
budget and that the MD will reserve the other $2000 for partnering subject to multiple
workshops being hosted in our area

Carried
F1. CANADIAN AGRICULTURAL PARTNERSHIP
Reeve Stevick left the meeting at this time, the time being 11:25 am
Martin Puch 18/013

Moved that the report on the Stakeholder Consultation Opportunity be received as information;
AND THAT the board members be encouraged to complete the survey on their own.
Carried

G. AR 7T TURAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DEPA” ™ ““"NTAL REPORT

Frank Welsch 18/014

Moved to accept the Agricultural and Environmental Services Departmental Report, for January
and February 2018, as information.

Carried
H. C""RESPOND **'CE
(1a) Southern Alberta Grazing School for Women — Sponsorship Request
Councillor Everts 18/015

Moved that Council consider a $300 financial contribution, to be taken for AES Special Projects
and Plans (Account No. 2-62-0-772-2765), as sponsorship for the Southern Alberta Grazing
School for Women in 2018.

Carried

(2) For Information



Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes
March 1, 2018
Page 3

Councillor Everts 18/016
Moved that the following items be received as information;
a) Transboundary Water, Weeds and Stewardship Tour 2018
b) Canadian Agricultural Partnership
¢) Agricultural Efficiency Programs Expanded
Carried

H NE‘I[ DITOMTTOCQ

[. NEXT MEETING

April 5,2018

H. ADJOURNMENT

Frank Welsch 118/017

Moved to adjourn the meeting, the time being 11:54 am.
Carried

ASB Chairperson ASB Secretary



Board Representatives

Barney Reeves, Waterton Lakes

Jim Bester, Cardston County
Dennis Barnes, Cardston

Duncan McLean, Granum

Brent Feyter, Fort Macleod

Quentin Stevick, MD Pincher Creek
Blair Painter, Crowsnest Pass
Warren Mickels, Cowley

Scott Korbett, Pincher Creek

Call to Order and introductions

Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes

Approval of Cheque Register

Planning Discussion

Motions arising from Discussion

Alberta SouthWest Regional Alliance
Minutes of the Board of . irectors Meeting
Wednesday March 7, 2018 — Stockmans Grill — Fort Macleod

Glb

Albert Elias, Glenwood

Dale Gugala, Stavely

Maryanne Sandberg, MD Willow Creek
Kathy Wiebe, MD Ranchland

Resource Staff and Guests
Bev Thornton, Executive Director, AlbertaSW
Bob Dyrda, Project Lead, AlbertaSW

Chair Barney Reeves called the meeting to order.

Moved by Blair Painter THAT the agenda be approved as presented
Carried. [2018-03-569]

Moved by Dennis Barnes THAT the minutes of February 7, 2018 be
approved as presented.
Carried. [2018-03-570]

Moved by Duncan McLean THAT cheques #2333 to #2358 be
approved as presented.
Carried. [2018-03-571]

Bob Dyrda led a discussion through the AlbertaSW Core Businesses
and provided background on projects, to date.

Board discussed ideas for going forward.

Those discussions will form the basis of a draft 2018-2019 Operations
Plan, to be presented at the next meeting.

> Transportation corridors are of vital importance to move goods,
services and people throughout the region.

Moved by Blair Painter THAT AlbertaSW become a member of the
“Highway 3 Twinning Development Association”.

Carried. [2018-03-572]

Moved by Dennis Barnes THAT AlbertaSW provide a letter of
support to the Lethbridge Chamber regarding its initiative to create a
collaborative approach to transportation corridors.

Carried. [2018-03-573]

Discussion also noted that regional secondary roads may be better
utilized and promoted as access to regional attractions.

»Regional promotion and providing good information about the

opportunities in the region will serve to benefit all our communities.
The regional economic development officers have reviewed options
and recommend that the Board consider a three-year proposal from



AdminExecAsst
Text Box
G1b


Townfolio to build and continuously update an on-line community
profile for each participating community.

Moved by Scott Korbett THAT AlbertaSW offer to cost-share the
annual fee with each participating community.

Carried. [2018-03-574]

Bev will send out the full proposal to the Board.

Each Board representative will take the proposal to respective
Councils to consider a 50/50 cost sharing of the annual fee.

»Organizational Leadership is a strength of AlbertaSW. This can be
formally recognized by gaining certification within economic

development professional organizations.

Moved by Jim Bester THAT AlbertaSW proceed with application to
the International Economic Developers Council (IEDC) to become an
Accredited Economic Development Organization (AEDO).

Carried. [2018-03-575]

»Other funding will be pursued for the region, as it comes available:
AlbertaSW is applying, on behalf of the SAAEP partners, to the
Community Energy Capacity Building Program (CECBP). This is
offered by Energy Efficiency Alberta and will not require any
matched funds from the region. If approved, a 6-month project will
update community leaders regarding all technologies, identify best
practices in municipal policy and legislation and identify
opportunities in our communities.

7. Project Lead report. Accepted as information.
8. Executive Director Report Accepted as information.
9. Roundtable updates Consensus that the topic for roundtable updates for next meeting be:

What kind of investment is your community hoping to attract or focus
upon developing?
10.Board Meetings:
April 4, 2018 - Claresholm
May 2, 2018 - Nanton
June 6, 2018 - AGM Waterton

11. Adjournment Moved by Blair Painter THAT the meeting be adjourned.
Carried. [2018-03-576]

" Cnarr
Approved April 4, 2018

Secretary/Treasurer










G3a


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
G3a











would require an increase in tax revenue of 2.3% over time. We recommend a 10 year option which
involves full funding being achieved over 10 years by:

when realized, reallocating the debt cost reductions of $71,000 to the infrastructure deficit as outlined in the financial
strategy section.

increasing tax revenues by 0.2% each year for the next 10 years solely for the purpose of phasing in full funding to the
asset categories covered in this section of the AMP.

increasing existing and future infrastructure budgets by the applicable inflation index on an annual basis in addition to
the deficit phase-in.

The average annual investment requirement for sanitary services and water services is $445,000. Annual
revenue currently allocated to these assets for capital purposes is $29,000 from rates and $112,000 from
taxes for a total of $141,000. This leaves an annual deficit of $304,000. To put it another way, these
infrastructure categories are currently funded at 32% of their long-term requirements. In 2015, Pincher Creek
has annual sanitary revenues of $37,000 and annual water revenues of $59,000. We recommend a 10 year
option which involved full funding being achieved over 10 years by:

when realized, reallocating the debt cost reductions of $71,000 for sanitary services and $227,000 for water services to
the applicable infrastructure deficit as outlined in the financial strategy section.

increasing rate revenues by 0% for sanitary services and 1.0% for water services each year for the next 10 years solely for
the purpose of phasing in full funding to the asset categories covered in this section of the AMP.

increasing existing and future infrastructure budgets by the applicable inflation index on an annual basis in addition to
the deficit phase-in.

Although this option achieves full funding on an annual basis in 10 years and provides financial
sustainability over the period modeled {to 2050), the recommendations do require prioritizing capital
projects to fit the resulting annual funding available. As of 2015, age based data shows a pent up
investment demand of $0 for sanitary services and %0 for water services. Prioritizing future projects will
require the age based data to be replaced by condition based data. Although our recommendations
include no further use of debt, the results of the condition based analysis may require otherwise.



G3b


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
G3b





ArRcRTA SOUTHWEST REGIONA® ~'''ArTE
Mandate: Alberta SouthWest Regional Alliance Ltd. {AlbertaSW) is a Regional
Economic Development Alliance (REDA) of 16 communities working

together to help each other succeed.
Member(s): Scott Korbett

Councillor Korbett Update:

Alberta SouthWest Regional Alliance {AlbertaSW) is a group of 16 communities, working together for
regional economic development. The collaborative initiatives focus on creating the right environment in
which balanced growth can occur, increasing prosperity for all members.

Alberta SouthWest represents a total membership population just over 33,000 and covers an area of
16,705 km2. What defines AlbertaSW is commitment to rural communities and pride in quality of life
and opportunity. The communities endeavour to help each other succeed, knowing that when one
community thrives, there is the potential for every community to benefit.

Pincher Creek is one vote on this board of 16 ranging from Nanton to Waterton, Fort Macleod to the
Crowsnest Pass.

Currently working on our long-range plan for economic development opportunities across the region.
Past projects have been the regional business licenses and working towards electric vehicle charging
stations

(unneenc N p DAYCARE BOARD
Staff Lead: FCSS Coordinator
Member(s): Sussanne O’Rourke
Alternate: Wayne Elliott

Councillor O’'Rourke Update:
Prepared by David Green

Children’s World Day Care (CWDC) Society is a Registered Non-profit and Charity. Children’s World
facilities are located at Central School {Town Hall) and St. Michael’s. Governance is provided by a Board
of Directors with the day-to-day operations of the facilities overseen by an Executive Director.

Since last August, the Town has provided financial assistance to CWDC and is presently working to
strengthen that partnership. To that end, a Councillor has been appointed to sit on the Board to act as
liaison. The Town recognizes the importance of maintaining the delivery of high quality, consistent, and
sustainable day care. Council also recognizes external factors affecting all community day care
operations and is working to minimize those factors.




CON*~''»"'TY HALL BOARD
Mandate:  Established in 1972, Pincher Creek’s Community Hall is an immaculately

maintained multi-use facility that serves as the heart of this community.
Staff Lead: Economic Development, Marketing and Events Officer
Member(s): Lorne Jackson

Councillor Jackson Update:

Things seem to be business as usual for the hall, albeit to this point this year the bookings

are reported as a bit light. The Facility Manager believes that things will fill in as the weather
starts warming, and wedding and group bookings start filling in the gaps. Repairs to the roof to
address water intrusion along the eaves was completed for a favorable price after initial
estimates were looking to be quite pricey. The board is currently doing a casino in Lethbridge
for operating funding and | have been tasked with coordinating the move of the commercial
range/griddle from Crestview Lodge to the Hall, and at the same time, we have found a home
for the hali's current range in Twin Butte for their Community Hall. A project that got derailed
because of the election, is the proposed better lighting of the parking lot, | know that we did
have some conversation about it around the table but nothing concrete. | have also been
tasked to find out what the options may be for that

COMMUNITY HOUSING COMMITTEE

Mandate: Study and provide advice regarding matters related to housing.
Staff Lead: FCSS Coordinator
Members: Don Anderberg, Sussanne O’Rourke and Brian McGillivray

Councillor McGillivray Update:

Increasing affordable housing availability is essential to facilitate the growth of our community.
The Community Housing Committee is comprised of Mayor Don Anderberg, Councillors Sussanne
O’Rourke and Brian McGillivray; it is facilitated by the FCSS Coordinator David Green.

The Committee has recommended to and secured approval from Town Council to enter in to an
agreement with the Alberta Rural Development Network (ARDN) who will provide significant
expertise and project management to see new sustainable and affordable housing units
constructed in Pincher Creek.

esh new ideas regarding construction methods and Federal and Provincial grants targeting
sustainable housing are the key area focus as the Committee works it’s way through initiatives in
partnership with ARDN.




The goal is growth of affordable housing and the Committee is committed to facilitating that goal.

~nnanatINITY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE

Mandate: Study and provide advice regarding matters related to transportation.
Staff Lead: Director of Operations

Membership: Lorne Jackson and Brian McGillivray

Councillor Jackson Update:

In transportation, we are getting close to culmination of over two years of work toward providing public
transportation for our residents. We went about tackling transportation on a couple of fronts, one for
the general population, and another aimed at medically at risk, and shut-in non- drivers who find
difficulty in accessing day to day personal business {things like food shopping, medical and hairdressing
appointments, and social visits). The town was successful in receiving a Green Trip transportation

grant to investigate and implement a scheduled bus service within the town, and having purchased a
"demo" disability accessible 12 passenger bus, and working out a route that covers all of town within a
300 meter walking distance, we will soon see that bus on our streets. The town was also selected for a
pilot project in conjunction with the U of A Medically At Risk Drivers program, to study and find
transportation solutions for our seniors and those with disabilities and medical limitations, with the aim
of allowing more folks to remain in their own homes as a quality of life measure. The Transportation
Committee met with all of the senior’s groups and organizations in town, as well as hospital
administrative staff to get their input, and gage interest in such a service. There was overwhelming
support from everyone we talked to, so the committee then began to meet with possible service
providers that already offered transport of people to varying degrees. As a result, the town entered into
an agreement with the Handy Bus Society to replace their aging vehicle with a new one utilizing grant
funding from the Community Initiatives Program. , We are also investigating options to assist them with
scheduling.

DAYCARE COMMITTEE

Staff Lead: FCSS Coordinator
Member(s)  Sussanne O’Rourke, Brian McGillivray and Wayne Elliott

Councillor O'Rourke Update:
Prepared by Diane Burt Stuckey

The Town of Pincher Creek recognizes the importance of quality, affordable and accessible child care




services for the future of our community. Since 2016, the Town has been looking at options to relocate
Children’s World Day Care which leases space in the Town Hall. Substantial upgrading of the space is
needed to comply with licensing standards; also, space is limited to expand their operations. In 20186,
Council approved funds to study alternate locations for a day care facility and to better understand the
overall child care needs in our community. Meetings and surveys with parents, employers and children
providers gathered information. Town Council then appointed a Day Care Committee to review the
study/report and to provide recommendations to Council. in 2017, the Committee talked with
Livingstone Range and Holy Spirit school boards about their support for day care services and potential
locations for a new facility. A second study was completed last year to provide detailed information on
current numbers of children in child care, square footage and equipment required for a day care and the
associated costs. Recently, Council approved a Terms of Reference for the Day Care Committee and
three members of the public have been appointed to the Committee. The role of the Committee is to
research, study and provide advice to the Town Council related to day care trends etc. Recent
Committee meetings have focused on options for buildings, potential locations and various operating
models for day care. Discussions continue with the school boards as to locations. The thought is to
locate one facility at Canyon School site and one at St. Michaels School site, accommodating a total of
160 children. This would meet needs for today and into the future. The Town is committed to work with
Children’s World Day Care to provide support and to ensure uninterrupted child care services to families
of Pincher Creek.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Mandate:  To advise Town Council on various economic development issues.
Staff Lead: Economic Development Officer
Member(s): Scott Korbett

Councillor Korbett Update:

A dynamic group of citizens from the Town and MD of Pincher Creek Working to enhance the
economic development of our town. Currently working on the wayfinding signage program and
presenting different ideas to council for consideration.

EMERGENCY SERVICES COMMISSION

Mandate: To manage fire and ambulance services.
Staff Lead: Fire Chief

Member(s): Lorne Jackson and Don Anderberg
Alternate: Mark Barber

Mayor Anderberg Update:




The Pincher Creek Emergency Services Commission {PCESC) provides fire, rescue and ambulance
services to the Town and Municipal District of Pincher Creek # 9.

The commission is a standalone entity wholly owned by the Town and the MD of Pincher Creek and is
governed by an operating board of four members, two each appointed by each jurisdiction. The
commission acts under the authority of the provincial Municipal Government Act (MGA) and Regulation
as authorized by the minister of municipal affairs.

PCESC operates out of three fire halls, Pincher Creek, Beaver Mines and Lundbreck. We have a mix of
full time and volunteer staff in an integrated service where firefighters are cross trained as emergency
medical responders { EMR ) or emergency medical technicians ( EMT) and act as first responders to
emergency calls. PCESC also has a contract with Alberta Health Services to provide 24/7/365 ambulance
coverage with paramedic units. We currently have four licensed ambulances, two of which we contract
to AHS and two that are used on an as required basis.

PCESC has a number of mutual aid agreements in place including all of our municipal neighbors, forestry,
Parks Canada, Alberta transportation, Piikani and Blood tribes and the Village of Cowley.

FACILI™'"c ™ **'\ING STUDY STEERING ~~"*»"'77er
Mandz... .. .tudy and provide advice to the Town of Pincher Creek regarding the

future development, renovation or expansion of facilities including sport,
recreational, community and other Town owned facilities.

Staff Lead: Director of Community Services

Member(s): Mark Barber and Wayne Elliott

Councillor Elliott Update:

When people refer to the Facilities Committee they often think of recreation, however it is much more
than that. The Water Treatment Plant, Sewage Treatment Lift station and the Lagoons are likely the
three most important facilities in the community. Most of the time they are taken for granted, being out
of sight and out of mind! If one of the three ever breaks down, we could be in for a tough time. They are
tied together in a round about way. We need water survive, flush and a place to store it until it is ready
to be released back to nature.

EAranv pnin ~AMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES

Mandate:  Agreement between Her Majesty in Right of Alberta and Town of Pincher
Creek to provide for the establishment, administration, and operation of a
Family and Community Support Services Program in accordance with the
Family and Community Support Services Act and Regulation

Staff Lead: FCSS Coordinator

Member(s): Sussanne O’Rourke




Councillor O’Rourke Update:
Prepared by David Green

“The Pincher Creek and District Family and Community Support Service facilitates preventive social
services and community initiatives which contribute to community and family wellness and which build
community capacity in the Town of Pincher Creek, the Municipal District of Pincher Creek #9 and the
Village of Cowley.”

FCSS is an 80/20 funding partnership between the Government of Alberta, local municipalities and Metis
Settlements. Governing Legislation is the FCSS Act of Alberta and FCSS Regulation 218/94.

Under FCSS, communities design and deliver social programs that enhance well-being among
individuals, families, and communities and generally promote and facilitate the development of
stronger, more resilient communities.

FCSS believes that self-help contributes to a sense of integrity, self-worth and independence. The
programs are intended to help individuals in our community adopt healthy lifestyles, thereby improving
quality of life and building the capacity to prevent and/or deal with crisis situations should they arise.

One of the key principles of the FCSS Program is local responsibility in priority-setting and resource
allocation. FCSS emphasizes local decision-making, based on the belief that communities have the desire,
energy and resources to build capacity. Each municipality or Metis settlement determines how the dollars
they receive should be allocated to meet local needs.

Through a regional agreement the FCSS Board is responsible for overseeing the delivery of community
programs and projects for the Town of Pincher Creek, The M.D. of Pincher Creek No. 9 and the Village of
Cowley. The Board consists of three elected officials and four members-at-large.

FCSS has funded 14 agencies for the 2018 year. The list can be seen on the display panel.

HIGHWAY #3 ASSOCIATION

Mandate: Members to this committee must be approved by the Association Board.
Staff Lead: CAO

Member(s): Don Anderberg

Alternate: Mark Barber

Mayor Anderberg Update:
This organization has been working on the twinning of Highway # 3 since 2001. An economic impact
assessment study was undertaken at that time to assess an economic value to the twinning of Highway




3. There are currently close to 50 members including municipalities, school boards, economic
development associations, tourism groups and private citizens.

In 2014, myself, along with the mayors of Crowsnest Pass, Fort Macleod, Coalhurst and Lethbridge and
our local MLA and a Lethbridge MLA renewed our efforts to address some serious safety issues and
attempt to get the highway twinned. We were successful in getting the Coalhurst corner reconfigured,
traffic circle on highway 24 near Nobleford, crosswalks and signage in the Crowsnest Pass and a traffic
light on highway 3 in the pass. We were also successful in growing the interest from Medicine Hat to the
BC border.

As a group we have been successful in getting the attention of Transportation Minister Brian Mason. in
2017 his department provided funds for a new economic impact study for Highway 3 and the result is
that for every dollar spent building the road there is a three dollar return on investment. This
information has triggered functional plans to be initiated and undertaken by Alberta transportation from
sentinel to Pincher Creek and from Taber to Burdett. These are currently being worked on. We are on
the radar screen and will continue to move forward in lobbying and talking to the appropriate
government officials to get highway 3 twinned.

LIBRARY BOARD and ¢*~"'"NOOK ARCH

Mandate:  Pursuant to the Libraries Act of Alberta, the Pincher Creek & District
Municipal Library will provide full and equal access to information,
resources and ideas, and promote an atmosphere of life-long learning.

Staff Lead: Head Librarian

Member(s): Mark Barber

Councillor Barber Update:

| am very new to this board. However, | have grown to appreciate all that our library offers.
With our partnership with the Chinook Arch Regional Library System our card holders have
access to nearly 1,000,000 physical items, over 30,000 downloadable eBooks, audiobooks,
and movies, 20,000 digital magazines and newspapers, online courses and research
databases, and the RISE Videoconferencing Network.

Our library has recently formed a partnership with Alberta Parks and our library now offers
numerous items that can be used to better enjoy the outdoor experience.

One of the challenges that our library faces is a lack of space. This lack of space significantly
limits library programing. Conversations continue regarding expansion plans. These plans
may also include a small performing arts centre.




10

MAYORS & REF*'"S OF SOUTHWEST ALBERTA
Mandate: Mayors & Reeves of Southwest Alberta.
Member(s): Don Anderberg or available Councillors

Mayor Anderberg Update:

Approximately forty mayors and reeves from southwest Alberta gather monthly in Lethbridge to discuss
items of mutual concern. This group has been active for close to twenty years. In recent years the focus
has changed from being just an information group to more of an active lobbying body for our region.
This group represents a population of close to 200,000 people. Our regional members of parliament and
members of the legislative assembly are invited to attend and provide reports on a monthly basis. Some
of the successes over the years include keeping 911ambulance dispatch services in Lethbridge,
successfully lobbying to keep the rural physicians action plan in our care and control and getting real
results on highway 3 upgrades and twinning. An upcoming item will be coming from our community in
relation to 911 emergency response and the need to coordinate ambulance, rescue, police and fire
response through better channels of communication. The strength in numbers approach has been very
successful when other avenues have not produced desired outcomes for individual municipalities.

MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT AND SUB™"/'<'ON AL ..IORITY (MDSA)

Mandate: Pursuant to the Municipal Government Act and MDSA Bylaw #1543, to
review applications for discretionary developments.

Staff Lead: Manager of Legislative Services

Member(s): Wayne Elliott, Brian McGillivray and Scott Korbett

2017 Development Quick Facts:

41 Development Permits for an estimated aggregate total value of $10,088,905.00
3 Demolition Permit Applications

8 Sign Permit Applications

7 Home-Based Occupation Permits

36 Compliance Certificates issued

19 MDSA Applications heard/decided

OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION (ORRSC)
Mandate:  Concerns matters of subdivision, planning, etc.
Staff Lead: CAO

Member(s): Don Anderberg

Alternate: Scott Korbett

Mayor Anderberg Update:




11

ORRSC provides land planning, GIS services and subdivision services to the Town of Pincher Creek and
forty other municipalities in southern Alberta. The office is located in Lethbridge.

Staffing includes 7 full time planners, 2 intern planners, 5 GIS personnel, 3 subdivision technicians, a
bookkeeper, a secretary and a chief administrative manager. The town has a planner assigned to us and
we work closely with this planner on land use and subdivision files and our Intermunicipal Development
Plan. The board meets on a quarterly basis and the executive committee meets monthly. The executive
committee is an operating board with the responsibility of budgeting, setting fees and developing
bylaws and policies to guide the organization. The largest member is the county of Newell and one of
the smaller members is the Village of Cowley.

Oor=~"ATIONS COMMITTEE

Mandate: Study and provide advice regarding matters related to operational

services. Requires two members.
Staff Lead: Director of Operations
Member(s): Brian McGillivray and Lorne Jackson

Alternate: Wayne Elliott

Councillor McGillivray Update:

The Operations Committee studies, reviews and advises on matters of operational services. The
Committee is comprised of Councillors Lorne Jackson and Brian McGillivray; it is facilitated by Al Roth,
Director of Operations.

The Operations Committee areas of focus include streets, winter street maintenance, garbage
collection, landfill issues, parking, water and sewer services, street lighting, traffic signage and recycling
to name but a few.

The Committee is actively exploring methods to improve and expand our current recycling programs and
is investigating best practices in other comminutes in this regard.

The Town of Pincher Creek has a well planned, developed and maintained infrastructure. it has been
designed and built with foresight and future capacity in mind. We have an infrastructure and a team to
maintain it we can all be proud of.

PINCHER CREEK FOUNLC *™'ON BOARD

Mandate:  Manages the Housing Units in Pincher Creek. Requires ***~ members.
Staff Lead: Pincher Creek Foundation CAO

Meetings:  Third Wednesday monthly at 3:00 pm

Member(s): Lorne Jackson and Sussanne O’Rourke

Councillor Jackson Update:




12

The Pincher Creek Foundation, which some people only think of as the Crestview Lodge, is the
community housing authority for the area comprising the Town of Pincher Creek, M.D. of
Pincher Creek #9, and the Village of Cowley. The Foundation's main focus is of course the
administration and operation of Crestview Lodge, but there are also 12 senior self-contained
cottages, Canyon Manor with 12 apartment units, 12 Family Social Housing Units, and 20 clients
under the government rent subsidy program that the Foundation oversees. It has been a long,
and sometimes frustrating process with the construction of the new Crestview Lodge, but | am
extremely happy to report that the move-in is definitely slated for March 26 and 27. The
residents have already seen their designated rooms and suites in a tour of the building and are
very excited to occupy their beautiful new home. Once they are settled, | urge those who are
interested to see for themselves what a wonderful addition this is to our entire community,
made possible with the cooperation of our Municipal partners at the M.D. and Cowley.

POLICE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Mandate: formalize the process for receiving input from the community and the

partnership between the community, the RCMP and local government.
Staff Lead: FCSS Coordinator
Member(s): Mark Barber
Alternate: Wayne Elliott

Councillor Barber Update:

| am also new to this committee and | missed the last meeting as | was attending a tourism
conference in Camrose. Lou Burnham, a very dedicated member of the committee, provided
me with the following information:

1) David Green was elected as the chairperson for the board.

2) RCMP Sgt. Mark Harrison reported that Pincher Creek has been reasonably quiet for
the past few months. However, they are gearing up for another busy summer season
and are already allocating personnel resources for Waterton,

3) Tina Delinte, the Principal of St. Michaels School, reported that they are continuing
to work on their school security protocols and have already administered two school
lock down exercises this school year.

RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD
Mandate: Reviews Recreation and Parks issues, makes recommendations and

identifies issues.
Staff Lead: Director of Community Services




13

Member(s): Mark Barber

Councillor Barber Update:

| am starting my fifth year on the Recreation Advisory Committee. One of the events that
was initiated by our committee was the Moonshadow Run as held in September of each
year. John Verhagen has done an exceptional job of getting this annual event up and
running. The success of this event is evident as it has continued to grow over the past three
years. We also thank Alecia Williams for her dedication to the run.

John has also been instrumental in the awarding of the Southern Alberta Games in 2019 to
Pincher Creek. The year 2019 will be the 50" anniversary of the games. The award of the
games is even more special as Pincher Creek hosted the first ever Southern Alberta Summer
Games.

Another project that has received numerous positive comments is the installation of an off-
leash dog park in Juan Teran Park. Further, we have added dog facilities to the significant
dog run area to west of the Ag Grounds. Our committee is hopeful that the formalized dog
areas will reduce the number of dogs that frequent our sports fields and playground areas.

REGIONAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION
Mandate:  To act as an agent of the Council to carry out the Council’s statutory

powers and obligations as prescribed in the Emergency Management
Bylaw.

Staff Lead: CAO

Member(s): Lorne Jackson and Don Anderberg

Alternate: Mark Barber

REGION*' 'AMTT"'' -Town/MD/ Cowley/r-~v—~~-* Pass
Mandate:  Pursuant to landfill Authority bylaws

Staff Lead: Open

Member(s): Mark Barber

Alternate: Scott Korbett

Councillor Barber Update:

Having been recently appointed to the Landfill Board | have not yet achieved an in-depth understanding
of the full operation. However, there are some projects at the landfill that | am quite enthusiastic about.




14

The first project that the landfiil has been working on for a few years is their recycling program. They are
able to process much more than our, “in town” recycling facility. Some of the additional items they
process include plastic bags, bale twine, and hazardous materials such as paint and household
chemicals. They also recycle used electronics. Alberta Recycling was so impressed with our landfill’s
efforts that they recently awarded the landfill the “Award of Excellence.” It is important to note that
our in-town recycling facility is a significant asset to our community.

Another project that is still in its infancy is the acquisition of a mechanical composter. The technology,
as developed and manufactured in Manitoba, will handle all compostable materials. Further, the
equipment will complete the composting process within two weeks. It is anticipated that there will be a
market for the composted material. Regardless, should it be required that the composted material be
landfilled, the composting process will reduce the bulk of the unprocessed material by approximately 80
percent. Thus the operating life of our landfill will be significantly extended.

We have been experiencing increased opposition to the potential installation of an incinerator at the
landfill. | want to ensure the residents of Pincher Creek that their Town Council remains unwaveringly
opposed to this project.




15

T FOR MY TAXES?

RS

L

WHAT DO 1

» Municipal Services
» 26% Recreation

» Pool, Arena, Parks, Sports Fields, Community Recreation Centre

» 19% Common Services, Roads and Roadway Systems
w Annual spring/summer maintenance
Stroot swoeping
Ropairing
pot hotes
cracked sidewsalks, curbs and gutter
Storm drainago systems and catch basins
- Annual winter snow plowing, sanding and snow removal3
» 18% General, Legislative and Administration
» Council and Administration

- 11% Protective Services - Policing (debenture costs for cells) and CPO/Bylaw; Pincher
Creek Humane Society

~10% Culture and Community - Library, Lebel Mansion, Grants to Non-Profit Organizations,
Community in Bloom, Pincher Planters, Pincher Creek Food Bank, many in-kind activities
to non-profit organizations

- 8% Planning and Development

- 6% Net reserve transfers - to cover future capital asset purchases and emergent
operational expenditures

» 1% each Creek Management and Cemetery Management










G3c
Rolar " Miltinan

From: Bev s

Sent: Thursday, April 5, 2018 7:14 AM

To: Quentin Stevick; Rick Lemire; Terry Yagos; Brian Hammond
Cc: Roland Milligan

Subject: Fwd: April 7 End of the Season Potluck

I was asked to please forward the end of season CMCA potluck supper invite to Councillors. Saturday April 7
@6:30 in day lodge - see below for details- I will attend. Hope it doesn’t snow!!!

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:
From: Beaver Mines Community <beaverminescommunity(@gmail.com>
Date: April 2, 2018 at 12:31:08 PM MDT

To: undisclosed-recipients:;
Subject: Fwd: April 7 End of the Season Potluck

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: CMCA <ce~*'~nountainco~"~*"*y(@ ~ail.com>

Date: Mon, Apr 2, 2018 at 8:50 AM

Subject: April 7 End of the Season Potluck

To: Stewart Fraser & Monica

Cc: Bly Mike >, Everts Bev <CouncilDiv3{@mdpinchercre=! ab.ca>,

Ferguson Daryl < , Heidel Al & Trish t>, Lahey Linette
, Beaver Mines Community

<beaverminescommunity(@gmail.com>

Join us for our "End of the Season" Castle Mountain Community Association potluck on Saturday April 7 in
the Day Lodge!

Food service starts at 6:30 PM.

Bring a dish with food for 6-8 people and your own cutlery and plate. The bar will be open!
Staff and guests welcome!
Come join us for a fantastic meal.

Fraser

Disclaimer - Please note that this email is being sent to provide information only! 1t vou wish to
be removed from this mailing list please rephy with STOP in the subject line.


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
G3c


G3d

Beaver Mines Community Association Board Meeting
Saturday Feb 17 - Notes (prepared by Lynn Calder)

In Attendance:

BMCA: Pete Falkenberg, Linde Farley, Jeff McLarty, Jolaine Kelly, Ken Fast, Lynn
Calder, Mike Morley, Bev Everts (MD Councillor Div 3), Quentin Stevick (MD Reeve)
Community: none

Absent: Annie Starzynski (RCMP), Bob Black, Pat Black, Stephanie McLarty, Breanne
Bennett, Mark Pinard, Rob Bronson, Bernie Bonertz

Note: Only 6/13 Board members in attendance. No quorum.

A. Call to order
Meeting called to order at 10:00AM by Pete.

B. Approval of Agenda
Motion to adopt agenda by Lynn, Seconded by Ken.

C. Approval of last meeting minutes
Did not have minutes of Dec meeting. Bring forward to March meeting

D. Treasurer’s report

1. $5485.06 in bank, includes $2000 from MD/Town Joint Council Funding

2. Lynn/]eff tallied cost of alcohol for last two events. Looks like we need to
charge at least $3/drink to cover liquor permit and incidentals to break
even. Currently charging $3 or 4 for $2.50. Various options discussed. We
have also started serving hard liquor at recent events at request of some
community members. Need to decide what we will stock going forward.
Defer decisions to next meeting when we have quorum.

E. Outstanding Business
1. Insurance (Linde/Jeff) - Satisfied that MD’s insurance coverage adequately
protects us for director’s liability. No need for additional insurance.

2. Color swatches for water reservoir (Mike) - Mike will confirm colour
(beige like Lundbreck) with MD prior to March meeting

3. Purchases:
a) BBQ (Mike) - purchase on sale in spring (up to $1200)
b) Shopvac (Mike) - Breanne purchased used Shopvac from
Kootenay Brown Pioneer Village for $15.
c) Fish fry equipment (Stephanie) - buy on sale in spring

4. Community By-Law Review (Jeff) -have been drafted. Jeff to send to Board
for review prior to March meeting


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
G3d


5. Firesmart (Linde/Rob) - Dave Cox booked for Friday Mar: 16 at gazebo.
Linde will request people to send in questions in advance. Send out notice to
community by email and put up poster at store. Pete to be moderator. Linde
to purchase small gift for Dave. Rob looking into grants.

6. Pathway to Castle Mountain - input has been provided to Alberta Gov’t by
various people at recent Tourism open house. No further action by BMCA.
Remove from agenda. See also MD report below.

7. Historical Markers/Miners Cabins (Pete/Mike) - Farley Wuth (Kootenay
Brown Pioneer Village) keen. Will come examine foundations in spring. We
should try to find information on who lived in cabins in park.

8. Beaver Mines contact list (Jeff) - template set up; will be sent around for
comment before going to community.

9. Laneway request purchase (Bert Nyrose) - letter request has been sent in
to MD - on upcoming MD Council agenda (in camera)

10. MD Report
1. Water and Sewer

a. MD looking at alternative options for sewer since Mill Creek
sewage lagoon option not viable. MD consultant (MPE)
presenting to MD Council at next meeting.

b. Concerns expressed by Board about delays and resulting
cost increases and possibility of Castle Mountain getting
water before Beaver Mines.

c. Discussion around community standpipe if there is a gap
between delivery of water to community in 2018 and hook-
up. Not part of current contract. MPE have been requested
to look at options along pipeline route.

d. MD also looking for location for sani-dump for Parks.
Coalfields school discussed as one option.

2. Fire Prevention

a. MD considering requiring 30 m firebreak around hamlet,
including purchase of land adjacent to existing boundary.
Board expressed support for this and desire to coordinate
with utility corridors/walking path.

b. MD requests residents register our contact information
with the MD through the link on their website to ensure
rapid response notification

3. Land-use By-Law

a. MD is currently updating land-use bylaw as one of their top
priorities. There is a public process for community input.
Quentin and Bev suggest we be proactive and submit any



concerns in advance of the public hearing process. Need to
set up a committee to look at this. Discuss at next meeting.
4. Communications
a. MD has scheduled 3 “Coffee With Council Sessions” for
2018. All MD residents invited to attend any session:
i. Tuesday April 17t 6:30pm Summerview Hall
ii. Tuesday June 19t - 6:30pm Coalfields School
iii. Tuesday Oct 16t - MD Council Chambers
b. Board indicated that in future we would like input on the
date for the location and would like to see some sessions
held on/near weekends, so part-time residents can attend
¢. Quentin and Bev encouraged us to drum up attendance

Previous action items deferred:
Tennis backboard line painting (Mike)

F. New Business
1. Bar Management (Lynn). Agreed someone other than Jeff/event organizers
need to be responsible for bar, alcohol purchases and inventory. Ken agreed
to take this on.
2. Current land-use bylaws (Lynn). Lynn shared summary page of current
land use bylaw & map showing minimum lot sizes with and without water.
Full report available on MD website. See also MD report below.
3. Request for letter of support from Pincher Creek Chamber of Commerce
for hiring of Community Grant Writer to assist local non-profits get funding
(Lynn). Agreed to send letter of support. Lynn to draft letter for Pete’s
signature.
4. FireSmart presentation by Dave Cox (see above)
5. Request from Fraser Stewart for Castle Mountain Community Association
to meet with our Board. Agreed to set date, separate from regular meetings.
6. Speed limits - Beaver Mines to Castle Mountain (Bert Nyrose) - Bert’s
draft letter requesting decrease in speed limit between Beaver Mines and
BMR to 80km/hour shared and discussed. Defer discussion to next meeting
when we have quorum.
7. Casino license (Jeff) - Jeff has application for Casino license in Lethbridge.
Discussion around whether we would have enough people to staff. Jeff to
confirm how many people required and what shifts look like. Decide at next
meeting when we have quorum. Could be a couple of years before we get it.
8. Snow clearing in park (Pete) - Pete hired Clint Davis to clear path to
gazebo for meeting ($50). Will get receipt for Lynn. Discussion around
whether to continue this. Decide at next meeting when we have a quorum.

H. Call for adjournment
Jeff moved that meeting be adjourned, Ken seconded.
All in favour
Meeting Adjourned, 12:00PM



G4a

PINCHER CREEK FOUNDATION - LODGE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
G4a


PINCHER CREEK FOUNDATION - LODGE
TABLE OF CONTEN
December 31, 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 1

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 2
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 3
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET AST ™S 4
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 5
NOTESTO Tt FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 6-10
SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 11-12

AVAil LLp chanered Professionol Accountants



- Avail e

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To: The Board of Directors of
Pincher Creek Foundation - Lodge

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pincher Creek Foundation - Lo~ :, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017, and the statements of operations,
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers int 1l control relevant to the
organization's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the organization's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

Pincher Creek Foundation - Lodge as at December 31, 2017, and the results of its operations and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit

Al LLP

March 21, 2018 Chartered Professional Accountants

Lethbridge, Alberta

Claresholm « Fort Macleod o Lethbridée « Milk River « Pincher Creek « Taber « Vauxhall






PINCHER CREEK FOUNDATION - LODGE
STATEL._.IT OF OPERATIONS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

2017 2017 2016
Budget Actual Actual
_(L'=~"ited) _
Revenue
Resident accommodation $ 460,154 $ 438,412 § 409,342
Municipal requisitions (note 10) 421,368 421,368 421,368
Provincial grants 162,240 172,566 144,813
Management fees 95,520 97,657 95,520
Non-resident services 21,500 20,525 11,535
Resident services 14,969 16,607 13,916
Interest 7,600 6,709 7,691
Miscellaneous grants - 3,670 3,413
Donations - 245 2,111
Amorti-~*i~~ of capital contributions - 10,93n 10,771
1,183,351 1,188,689 1,120,639
Expenses
Human resources (schedule 1) 842,293 836,801 794,384
Operating (schedule 2) 146,050 144,469 137,281
Utilities (schedule 3) 85,861 81,261 70,848
Administration (schedule 4) 33,803 40,016 31,497
Operating maintenance (schedule 5) 17,935 15,191 18,274
Donations expended - 245 2,111
Amort=~*-n 15,000 19,574 17,962
1,140,942 1,137,507 1,072,357
Excess of revenue over expenses from operations 42,409 51,182 48,282
Loss on disposal of capital assets - - 17,385
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 42,409 § 51,182 § 30,897

AVQAI] 1P chartered professional Accountants 3









PINCHER CREEK FOUNDATION - LODGE
NOTESTO Tt FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

1. Nature of operations

Pincher Creek Foundation - Lodge is an organization that operates and manages social
programs aimed at providing affordable housing for senior citizens of Southern Alberta. The
Lodge is established as a management body by provincial ministerial order and is governed by
the Alberta Housing Act and its regulations. It qualifies as a not-for-profit organization and is a
registered charity as defined in the Income Tax Act and, as such, is exempt from income taxes.

2. Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations. The significant policies are detailed as follows:

(a) Revenue recognition
The Lodge follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable
if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably
assured.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are incurred. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when
earned.

Rental revenue is recognized monthly based on rental agreements

(b) Financial instruments
The Lodge initially measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value. The
organization subsequently measures all its financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost.

(c) GST receivable
The GST receivable is set up at the refundable rate in place at the time of the expenditure.

(d)} Inventory
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using
the specific item method.

(e) Capital assets
Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Only assets purchased costing $5,000 or
more are recorded in the capital asset accounts. Contributed capital assets are recorded at
fair value at the date of contribution. Amortization is provided for on the straight-line
method at rates designed to amortize the cost of the capital assets over their estimated
useful lives. Amortization is taken in the year of acquisition but is not recorded in the year of
disposal. The annual amortization rates are as follows:

Buildings 2%
Paving 5%
Sprinkler system 5%
Machinery and equipment 10%

AVA i L chortered Professional Accountants 6



PINkll Tl % W IVl % | W W ISErs S0 I s N kv,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEI.. 3
For the year ended Decemt 31, 2017

Significant accounting policies, continued

(f)

Net assets invested in capital assets
The Lodge has chosen to continue to treat net assets invested in capital assets as a
separate component of net assets.

Operating and capital reserves

Reserves are established at the discretion of the Board of Directors to set aside funds for
operating and for capital purposes. Such reserves are appropriations of unrestricted net
assets.

Contributed services

Volunteers contributed time to assist the Lodge in carrying out its service delivery activities.
Because of the difficuity of determining their fair value, contributed services are not
recognized in the financial statements.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Temporary investments

- _ 2017 2016
RBC Dominion Securities - GICs $ 85,000 % 80,000
RBC Investment Savings Account 80,280 -
$ 16 non @ on nnn
The GIC bears interest at 1.89% and will mature in July 2018.
Investments
2017 2016
Pincher Creek Coop Equity $ 440 % 300
RP” Dominior ©~~-*~s - GICs 85,000 170,000
$ 85,440 % 170,300
The GIC bears interest at 1.75% and will mature July 2019.
ailu 7









PINCHER CREEK FOUNDATION - LODGE
NOTES TO THE . .NANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2017

12. Related party transactions

During the year, the Pincher Creek Foundation - Crestview Lodge received management fees of
$45,000 (2016 - $45,000) and project labour fees of $45,000 (2016 - $45,000), as well as an
administration fee of $7,657 (2016 - $5,520) from Pincher Creek Foundation - Community
Housing. There is no amount due to/due from the related operations at year end (2016 - $0).
These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at their exchange
amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed upon by both parties.

13. Financial instruments

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The
Lodge is exposed to credit risk from customers. However, the Lodge has a significant number of
customers which minimizes concentration of credit risk.

Avail e chortered Professionsl Accountants 10









CNPC Landfill Board Minutes Feb 21, 2018

THE CROWSNEST/PINCHER CREEK LANDFILL ASSOCIATION
MINUTES
February 21, 2018

Gba

The regular meeting of The Crowsnest/Pincher Creek Landfill Association was held on
Wednesday, Feb 21, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. at the Landfill administration office.

Present:

AGEN™*

Terry Yagos, Municipal District of Pincher Creek #9
Dean Ward, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass

Dave Filipuzzi, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass
Gord Lundy, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass

Mary Kittlaus, Village of Cowley

Brian McGillivray, Town of Pincher Creek

Emile Saindon, Landfill Manager

Jean Waldner, Office Administrator

Dean Ward
Moved the agenda be adopted as presented.

Carried.

02.21.18-1009

02.21.18-1010

MINUTES
Dave Filipuzzi
Moved the minutes of Jan 24, 2018 and Special meeting Feb 12, 2018 be adopted as
circulated
Carried.
MANAGER’S REPORT
1. MSW volumes steady.

ov s wN

The Industrial cell has been steady with small contracts.

Training programs are in place and on line sessions have begun.

All required information to AEP has been completed and sent off.

Presentation to MD of Pincher Creek completed last week and went well.
Some service issues with household waste pick up due to weather but we are
back on track this week.

Preparing a presentation for Alberta Care conference in Brooks next week. It will
outline our Landfill operation and our Eco Recycling Building and operation.
Early March will be the start of our Annual report preparation for AEP.

All design and drawing for this summers expansion of cell and ponds have been
completed and sent in to AEP for approval.

Gord Lundy

Mo' |that the Manager's )ort be accepted for information. Carried.

02.21.18-1011


AdminExecAsst
Text Box
G5a


CNPC Landfill Board Minutes Feb 21, 2018

FINANCIAL REPORT

The Income Statement and Balance sheet to February 15", 2018 was reviewed. MNP
Accountants have completed our 2017 audit and they are ready to present it at our AGM

In March,

Dean Ward

Moved that the financial reports be accepted for information. Carried. 02.21.18-1012

NAMATIONM POLICY REV!SW

Gord Lundy expressed some concerns on our distribution of donation funds. He mentioned
It would be nice to see more of our donations be targeted towards focus on kids programs
only, rather than events etc. Dean explained the reasoning why this program was set up this
way. Itis on a 1% come 1% serve basis. That keeps it fair to all organizations, the Board does
try to give more funding to programs that do support children and family activities.

Gord Lundy

Moved that this inquiry be accepted for information. Carried. 0221181013

REVISED EMPLOYEE POLICY HANDBOOK
The revised Employee Policy Handbook will be reviewed by all Director’s and has been
tabled for approval at our next meeting.

Carried. 02.21.18-1014

DONAT!NN DENPEST

A Donation request from the Crowsnest Pass Literacy Foundation for their Home Visit Pre-K
Program

Dean Ward

Moved to donate $250.00 towards their Home Visit Pre-K Program. Carried. 02.21.18-1015

DONATION REQUEST

A Donation request from The Royal Canadian Legion Branch #9 for their Canadian Armed
Forces Appreciation Gala.
Gord Lundy

Moved to donate $500.00 towards the Canadian Armed Forces Gala. Carried. 02.21.18-1016

DONATION REQUEST
A Donation request from The Kananaskis Rodeo Association for their Elementary Students
Rodeo Passes.

Dave Filipuzzi
Moved to donate $500.00 towards the Schoo! Rodeo Passes. Carried. 02.21.18-1017



CNPC Landfill Board Minutes Feb 21, 2018

DONATION REQUEST

A Donation request from The Crowsnest Women’s Resource & Crisis Centre for their Dare

2BU and Let’s Cook program.
Gord Lundy

Moved to donate $200.00 towards their Dare 2BU & Let’s Cook Program. Carried. 0z.21.18-1018

Correspondence:

NEXT MEETING DATES

March 23,2018 August 15, 2018
April 18,2018 September 19, 2018
May 16, 2018 October 17, 2018
June 20, 2018 November 21, 2018
July 18, 2018 December 19, 2018
Tabled Items

Revised Employee Handbook

ADJOURNMENT
Mary Kittlaus
Moved the meeting adjourn at 9:40. a.m.

=

CHAIR

Carried. 02.21.18-1019

gCRETARY



Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Association

Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2017



Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Association

Contents
_ For the vear ended Deremhear 31 2017
Page
Management's Responsibility
Independent Auditors' Report
Financial Statements
Statement of FINANCIAl POSIION ..ottt sttt e st eeme e aa s et e e naeaseaeanas 1
Y (a1 [T o) RO o =T 21 To o - SO S PP PRSTTRUPPOPPN 2
Statement of Chan@es iN INEE ASSEES. ... ......oueiieiiiit ettt e e et e e st e st et eees e e ae e e b e et e b e et e smtea e e emteesme e seeeenenaenean 3
StAtEMENE OF CASI FIOWS. ....oi ittt ettt ettt s r et ene s h et e ere st et san bt e st ame st seansshsesbeiaesnsote e 4
Notes to the Financial Statements...... ... et se e e s r e e eeen 5
Schedule 1 - Schedule of Tangible Capital ASSELS. .........cuiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt e e e st e sbe et e e nresaeereeneesresenensennensenas 14

Schedule 2 - MD of Pincher Creek No.9 Waste Collections Statement of Operations................ocoiiiiiiincicnne e 15




Mananemant's Responsibilitv

To the Directors of Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Association:

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the accompanying financial statements, including responsibility for
significant accounting judgments and estimates in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for government not-for-profit
organizations. This responsibility includes selecting appropriate accounting principles and methods, and making decisions affecting the

measurement of transactions in which objective judgment is required.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management designs and maintains the
necessary accounting systems and related internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets

are safeguarded and financial records are properly maintained to provide reliable information for the preparation of financial statements.

The Board of Directors is composed primarily of Directors who are neither management nor employees of the Association. The Board is
responsible for overseeing management in the performance of its financial reporting responsibilities. The Board fulfils these
responsibilities by reviewing the financial information prepared by management and discussing relevant matters with management and

external auditors. The Board is also responsible for recommending the appointment of the Association's external auditors.
MNP LLP, an independent firm of Chartered Professional Accountants is appointed by the Directors to audit the financial statements and

report directly to them; their report follows. The external auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically and separately with,
both the Board and management to discuss their audit findings.

March 23, 2018

Management Accountant




Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Directors of Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Association:

We have audited the accompanying financial st¢ 1ents of Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Association, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017, and the statements of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows and the
related schedules for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards for government not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill
Association as at December 31, 2017 and the results of its operations, changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards for government not-for-profit organizations.

Lethbridge, Alberta M A/ P LLP

March 23, 2018 Chartered Professional Accountants

AON, ACCOUNTING > CONSULTING > TAX
Praxity : BESTEMPLOYER 3425 - 2ND AVENUE S, LETHBRIDGE AB, T1] 4V1
SNOEPENbENT FiRNE E— T 1.800.661.8097 T:403.3291552 F:403.3291540 MNP.ca






Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Assoc’ ‘ion

Statement of Operations
For the ye=r andad December 31, 2017

2017 2017 2016
Budget
Revenue
Domestic and industrial waste disposal fees (Note 8) 1,900,000 2,004,921 1,258,255
Out of region disposal fees (Note 8) 250,000 241,378 708,606
Revenue from roll-off truck 150,000 163,209 94,481
Investment income 43,000 33,182 55,542
Road maintenance fees 70,000 57,049 42,158
Revenue from rental bins 14,000 19,525 13,551
Electronics recycling fees 12,000 9,023 13,
Freon disposal 10,000 9,641 10,309
Sale of scrap and miscellaneous 161,200 76,915 9,250
Paint recycling incentive program 2,000 1,114 1,124
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangikle ~rnital acente 14,750 178 480)
2,612,200 2,630,706 2,178,136
Expenses
Amortization - 1,318,314 1,750,534
Salaries, wages and benefits 1,034,950 984,668 1,052,975
Tervita Corp. - 25% share 162,500 275,465 122,843
Industrial waste expense 58,500 196,116 74,871
Landfill closure and post-closure provision - 132,732 108,459
Fuel and oil 114,500 142,505 126,904
Interest on long-term debt - 79,299 86,846
Remediation materials 5,000 19,339 1,440
Repairs and maintenance - machinery and equipment 58,300 93,951 119,554
Insurance and licences 76,500 75,729 71,705
Repairs and maintenance - general 73,800 94,347 135,423
Litter control 38,000 34,443 76,210
Monitoring 27,500 78,439 77,568
Office 34,000 41,132 30,060
Professional fees 31,000 36,939 133,442
Utilities 40,000 36,552 28,506
Rental 4,800 - 18,222
Meetings 10,000 14,421 19,701
Repairs and maintenance - road 35,000 32,549 41,600
Hazardous material disposal 8,000 9,838 11,528
Freon removal 600 - (198)
Bad debts 1,000 2,536 598
Paint disposa  pense 3,000 3,206 2,800
d lease 800 800 800
Site beautification 10,000 807 5,693
1,827,750 3,704,127 4,098,084
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 784,450 (1,073,421) (1,919,948)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

2



Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill As )>ciation
Statement of Change in Net Assets

Crrthn vunae anmdnd hecember 31 2MN17

Capital Operating Restricted 2017 2016
Fund Fund Fund

Net assets, beginning of year 4,105,260 981,084 20,000 5,106,344 7,026,292
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses - (1,073,421) - (1,073,421)  (1,919,948)
Amortization of tangible capital assets (1,318,314) 1,318,314 - - -
Purchase of tangible capital assets 525,322 (525,322) - - -
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital
assets {200,000) 200,000 - - -
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 14,750 (14,750) - - -
Long-term debt repayments 113,645 (113,645) - - -
Capital lease payments 120,764 (120,764) - - -
Reserve wage fund (20,000) 20 nnQ - -
Net assets, end of year 3,361,426 631,497 40,000 4,032,923 5,106,344

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

3






Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Association

Notes to the Financial Statemen
For the year enc~~ "~cember 31, ™'~ -

Incorporation and nature of the organization

The Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Association (the “Association”) is directed by a Board of Directors who are
councilors from the Municipality of Crowsnest Pass, Village of Cowley, Town of Pincher Creek, and Municipal District of
Pincher Creek #9, and operate to provide waste management services to the surrounding area.

Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are the representations of management, prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards for government not-for-profit organizations including the adoption of the PS4200 series and include
the following significant accounting policies:

Fund accounting

The Association follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions and reports using fund accounting that result in
a self-balancing set of accounts for each fund established by legal, contractual or voluntary actions. The funds have been
amalgamated for the purpose of presentation in the financial statements.

The Association maintains the following funds:

. Operating fund reports on the general activities of the Association administration.

. Capital fund reports on the capital assets of the Association with any related capital financing.

. Restricted fund reports on the future retirement costs reserve of the Association which has been restricted by the
Board.

Income tax status

The Association is registered as a society under the Income Tax Act ("the Act’) and as such is exempt from income taxes.
In order to maintain its status as a society under the Act, the Association must meet certain requirements within the Act. In
the opinion of management, these requirements have been met.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include balances with banks.




Crowsnest - Pincher Creek | ndfill Association
Notes to the Financial Statemet

For the year ended December 31, 201/

Significant accounting policies (Continued from previous page)

Financial instruments

The Association recognizes its financial instruments when the Association becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument. All financial instruments are initially recorded at their fair value.

At initial recognition, the Association may irrevocably elect to subsequently measure any financial instrument at fair value.
The Association has not made such an election during the year.

The Association subsequently measures investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market and all derivative
instruments at fair value. Fair value is determined by published price quotations. Investments in equity instruments not
quoted in an active market are subsequently measured at cost. All other financial assets and liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the origination, acquisition, issuance or assumption of financial instruments
subsequently measured at fair value are immediately recognized in excess if revenue over expenses. Conversely,
transaction costs are added to the carrying amount for those financial instruments subsequently measured at amortized
cost or cost.

All financial assets except derivatives are tested annually for impairment. Management considers whether the investee has
experienced continued losses for a period of years, recent collection experience for the loan, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, etc. in determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists. Any
impairment, which is not considered temporary, is recorded in the statement of operations. Write-downs of financial assets
measured at cost and/or amortized cost to reflect losses in value are not reversed for subsequent increases in value.
Reversals of any net remeasurements of financial assets measured at fair value are reported in the statement of
remeasurement gains and losses.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. The costs to acquire tangible capital assets are reported as interfund transfers
in the operating fund with a corresponding interfund contribution recognized in the capital fund.

Amortization is provided using methods and rates intended to amortize the cost of assets over their useful lives.

In the year of acquisition, amortization is taken at one-half of the stated rates.

Method Rate
Automotive declining balance 30 %
Buildings declining balance 5%
Computer equipment declining balance 30 %
Computer software declining balance 100 %
Equipment declining balance 20 %
Fences and signs declining balance 10 %
Furniture and fixtures declining balance 20 %
Heavy machinery declining balance 30 %
Industrial waste disposal straight line 40 years
Irrigation equipment declining balance 6 %
MSW Cell Expansion straight line 7 vears
Right of way s jhtline 20 3
Roads declining balance 4%
Scales declining balance 20 %
Site preparation declining balance 50 %
Waste containers declining balance 30 %
Wells declining batance 10 %




Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill # »>ciation
Notes to the Financial Statements

CAarthn vnnar andad Nanambhar 24 2N47

Significant accounting policies (Continued from previous page)

Leases

A lease that transfers substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership is classified as a capital lease. At the inception
of a capital lease, an asset and a payment obligation are recorded at an amount equal to the lesser of the present value of
the minimum lease payments and the property’s fair market value. Assets under capital leases are amortized on a straight-
line basis, over the lease term unless there is a bargain purchase option available at the end of the lease then the capital
asset it amortized over its useful life. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and rental payments are
expensed as incurred.

Contributed assets

Contributions of assets are recognized both as contributions in the statement of operations and an asset when a fair value
can be reasonably estimated and when the assets are used in the normal course of the Association's operations and would
otherwise have been purchased.

Long-lived assets

Long-lived assets consist of tangible capital assets. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and amortized as
described in the applicable accounting policies.

When the Association performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. Impairment losses
are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less than the assets' carrying amount.
Impairment is measured as the amount by which the assets' carrying value exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is
included in the statement of changes in net assets in the capital fund for the year.

Landfill closure and post-closure liability

The Alberta Environmental Protection and Enhancement Act sets out the regulatory requirements to properly close and
maintain all active and inactive landfill sites. Under environmental law, there is a requirement for closure and post-closure
care of solid waste landfill sites. The costs associated with this care are being provided for over the estimated remaining life
of the landfill site and industrial waste cell based on usage.

Revenue recognition

The Association recognizes revenues in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the
revenues and collection is reasonably assured. Income from investments are recognized when earned.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Accounts receivable are stated after evaluation as to their collectibility and an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided where considered necessary. Landfill closure and post closure costs are recognized based upon assumptions and
estimates related to the costs of future removal and site restoration. Annual provision for these costs are amortized over
the estimated remaining life of the landfill site and industrial waste cells based on usaae. Changes to the underlying
assumptions and estimates or legislative changes in the near term could have a r erial impact on the provision
recognized. Amortization is based on the estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary they are reported in
excess of revenues and expen in the periods in which they become known.




Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Association

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2017

Term deposits

2017 2016
One year non-redeemable term deposit, bearing interest at 0.75%, maturing March 8, 2018 20,000 -
Three year non-redeemable term deposit, bearing interest at 2.00%, maturing March 3, 2018 327,512 321,104
Five year non-redeemable term deposit, bearing interest at 2.13%, maturing July 11, 2020 280,312 274,486
Five year redeemable term deposit, bearing interest at 1.75%, maturing October 13, 2020 134,948 132,629
One year non-redeemable term deposit, bearing interest at 1.38%, maturing July 28, 2017 - 506,864
Three year non-redeemable term deposit, bearing interest at 1.75%, maturing January 23, 303,535 298,299
2019
One year non-redeemable term deposit, bearing interest at 1.38%, maturing July 28, 2017 - 206,864
One year non-redeemable term deposit, bearing interest at 1.13%, maturing July 10, 2018 251,246 248 455
Two year non-redeemable term deposit, bearing interest at 1.63%, maturing February 27, 258,752 254,613
2018
Less: Current portion (857,511) (962,183)

742794 1,281,131

All of the term deposits are held at the Pincher Creek Credit Union Limited.

Bank indebtedness

The Association has an overdraft protection agreement authorized to $60,000 (2016 - $60,000) bearing interest at prime +
1.0%. The overdraft is secured by all deposits and paid up shares in the Credit Union. The Association has utilized this
overdraft protection during 2017 for $nil (2016 - nil). The prime rate at December 31, 2017 was 3.2%.




Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Association
Notes to the Financial Statements

Long-term debt

For the vear ended NDercember 21, 2017

2017 2016
Debenture to the MD of Pincher Creek #9 bearing interest at 2.942% payable in bi-annual
instalments of $90,007 including interest, due September 1, 2032. Loan is a result of a Right
of Way built for access to the landfill and has also been set up as a capital asset with a net
book value of $1,962,542. 2,170,515 2,284,159
Less: Current Portion 117,013 113,645
2,053,502 2,170,514
Principal repayments on long-term debt in each of the next five years are estimated as follows:
Principal Interest Total
2018 117,013 63,002 180,015
2019 120,480 59,535 180,015
2020 124,051 55,964 180,015
2021 127,727 52,288 180,015
2022 131,513 48,502 180,015
Total 620,784 279,291 900,075










Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Association

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2017

Related party transaction

During the year, the Association carried out transactions with related parties as follows:

2017 2016
Domestic and industrial waste disposal fees:

Municipality of Crowsnest Pass 130,592 134,171
Municipal District of Pincher Creek #9 148,554 159,657
Town of Pincher Creek 76,626 81,975
Villana ~f Cowley 5,077 5,139
360,849 380,942

Accounts receivable included amounts from related parties as follows:
Municipality of Crowsnest Pass 8,396 7,358
Municipal District of Pincher Creek #9 16,052 13,242
Town of Pincher Creek 4,793 4,757
Villana ~f Cowley 419 216
29’660 nE £79

All transactions are in the normal course of operations, are carried out on the same terms and conditions as those with
independent third parties, and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount agreed to between the parties.
The parties are related as the board of directors of the Association are also councilors of the related parties.

included in Repairs and maintenance - Road expense is an amount paid to the Municipal District of Pincher Creek #9 of
$20,000 (2016 - $20,000) for remittance of road maintenance fees.

Financial instruments

All significant financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments of the Association are either recognized or
disclosed in the financial statements together with other information relevant for making a reasonable assessment of future
cash flows, interest rate risk and credit risk.

Credit concentration

The Association has a concentration of credit risk because 73% (2016 - 57% from one customer) of its accounts receivable
are from two of its customers. The Association believes that there is no unusual exposure associated with the collection of
this receivable. The Association performs regular credit assessments of its customers and provides allowances for
potentially uncollectible accounts receivables.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accruals is approximated by their fair value
due to their short-term nature. The carrying amount of term deposits also approximates the fair value, as they bear interest
rates that are comparable to current market conditions. The carrying value of the landfill closure and p  -closure  Hility
also approximates it's fair value as this liability has been determined based on discounted future cash flows.

12



Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill # sociation

Notes to the Financial Statements
Cnarthn wunqr ended December 31 2017

1.

12.

13.

14.

Commitments

The landfill is situated on land owned by the Alberta Government. The Association has an agreement to rent the land for
$800 per year. The agreement is open ended and rolls forward on a annual basis.

On August 7, 2013, the Association entered into an agreement with Tervita Corp., for a term of five years. Under the
agreement, the Association agrees to accept non-hazardous industrial waste at the Landfill Facility. The gross tipping fee is

to be agreed upon between the Association and Tervita Corp. for each generator and from each site. Tervita Corp. is
entitled to receive fees equal to 25% of the gross tipping fees received under this agreement.

Restrictions on net assets

Internally restricted net assets

During the year, the Association’s board of directors internally restricted $20,000 (2016 — $20,000) of unrestricted net
assets to be held for future retirement costs of the Association's employees. These internally restricted amounts are not
available for other purposes without approval of the board of directors.

Budget information

The Board approved its 2017 operating budget on December 14, 2016 based on planned expenses relating to the current
year sources of revenue and expenditures.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation.

13



Crowsnest - Pincher Creek Landfill Association

Schedule 1 - Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets
For the year ended December 31, 2017

Cost Accumulated Amortization
Balance, Actzil.lsltlon. ‘o{ . l.‘)Lprosalno{ Balance, Balance, Annual Accumulated Balance, 2017 net book 2 innk
beginning of year h - hd - end of year | beginning of year amortization amortlz'a tion on end of year value ?" t.anglble value ?' r‘a ng
assets assets disposals Jo To
Automotive 1,975 171,975 72,617 29,808 102,425 69,550 99,358
Buildings 1,612,662 55,519 (200,000) 1,468,181 223,945 61,561 (14,750) 270,756 1,197 425 1,388,717
Computer equipment 18,090 2,896 20,986 17,324 664 17,988 2,998 766
Computer software 10,546 10,541 10,546 10,546 - -
E ment 320,552 24,697 345,24 213,552 23,870 237,422 107,827 107,000
Fences and signs 318,623 99,693 418,31 131,016 23,745 154,761 263,555 187,607
Fumiture and fixtures 11,928 11,92 11,124 161 11,285 643 804
Heavy machinery 3,777,821 36,915 3,814,736 2,332,309 439,191 2,771,500 1,043,236 1,445,512
Industrial waste disposal cell 2,883 23,384 2,907,286 2,823,594 64,985 2,888,579 18,707 60,308
Irrigation equipment 2 2,59 2,028 34 2,062 537 571
W cell expansion 2,016,960 60,716 2,077,671 1,428,542 296,575 1,725,117 352,559 588,418
ht of way 2,706,955 2,706,955 609,065 135.348 744,413 1,962,542 2,097,890
Roads 125,562 125,562 101,233 973 102,206 23,356 24,329
Scales 126,179 126,179 105,016 4,233 109,249 16,930 21,163
preparation 147,221 147,221 130,577 8,372 138,949 8,272 644
ste containers 1,019,066 116,890 1,135,956 718,555 107,687 826,242 309,714 300,511
is 105,400 104,612 210,012 91,374 6,583 98,457 111,555 13,526
15,376,041 525,322 (200,000) 15,701,363 9,022,917 1,203,790 (14,750) 10,211,957 5,489,406 6,353,123
Heavy machinery 449, - - 449,112 67,366 114,524 - 181,890 267,222 381,746
_capital lease
15,825,153 525,322 (200,000) 16,150,475 9,090,283 1,318,314 (14,750) 10,393,84 5,756,628 6,734,869

14



Crowsnest - Pincher Ci :k Landfill Association
Schedule 2 - MD of Pincher Creek No.9 Waste Collections Statement of Operations
For the == anded December 31, 2017

2017 2016
Revenue
Revenue from roli-off and haul trucks 96,552 84,381
Revenue from rental bins 16028 192 RR2
113,477 96,933
Expenses
Fuel and oil 20,556 10,405
General and administrative expenses 160 2,328
Insurance 2,314 1,491
Rental 14,645
Repairs and maintenance - automotive 16,503 5,273
Salaries, wages and benefits 60,568 63,984
Supplies 696
100,101 98,821
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 13,375 (1,888)

15



| Jan] Fe Mar] Apr] May[  June] July] Aug] — Sept| Oct] Nov| Dec] [ 2017]

OUT OF PROVINCE

CNP Waste Disposal 3.530 1.820 5.350{Dom OP |5.350 x $63.30 =83 55
Fernie Alpine Resort 15.220f 17.96u; 16.960 ' 21.850 27.040] 12.400| 111.430]|Ind OP [111.430 x $63.30 = $7u»3.51
Phoenix Ent (asbestos) 38.810] 93.170} 75.390 22.89 50.700| 99.830| 95.170] 93.950( 21.820 591.730(Ind ASB [591.730 x $100.00 = $59173.00
Tervita EdmontonOP No MF 98.890 98.890|Ind Coal 198.890 x $200.00 = $19778.00
Southeast Disposal Ltd. | 99.430| 77.740| 257.970| 267.92u, 50.930 163.830| 223.480( 223.480| 32.51"' <~~~ ~»~~inom OP  197.290 x $63.30 = $88448.45

Total Out of Province  54.030 111.13v 191.780 77.740 257.970 290.810 105.160 222.390 259.000 317.430 272.340 44.91
tal = $197,617.51



	Agenda
	B1 Financial Statements
	B2 Airport
	C1 special minutes
	C2 CCM Minutes
	C3 Minutes
	D1 Bylaws
	E1a Airport Lease
	E1b Beaver Mines Update
	E1c OPS
	E3a financial statements
	E3b Millrate Bylaw
	E3c cash
	E4a regional meeting
	E4b Cuff
	E4c CAO
	F2aPERC
	F2b ACP
	F2c MAP
	F2d MSI 
	F2e Mourning
	F2f Chapel Rock
	F2g Mussels
	G1a ASB
	G1b ABSW
	G3a Assets
	G3b Town
	G3c CMCA
	G3d BMCA
	G4a Lodge
	G5a Landfill



